

ITH_Box_04_Journal_32



[Digitized, Jul. 2018]

January 1, 1938 - September 13, 1938

Jan. 1, 1938. Fine. Out before 11 to see procession returning from Cath. Good places behind soldiers H.A. + Maronie. Fine view of King, Queen, Uncle Geo etc. Back again. Wrote Act, - GM. Call from P. Mazaraki. Fin. dinner pm. Out c. 3.30 took B to Aust. Sch - Mar., L + J to hotel. Then went S. to thank Mrs S. Name day Mr S. guests there, fine ricina cordial. 3 pp. after a cup of tea. Began winged Phar.

2. Fine. Wrote T, H, McClarke, P. Myx. a.m. ESU, Ruth H. after. Out early, took Geo, Toula - Tasso to Anatolop - Road badly cut up. Collected shells on shore. Back for tea. 3 or 4 games later. Br + from Rome. Eve back to J. + some keep. reports + things ready for library.

3. Fine. Late start. Library on Deubner + Picard. L + J to Seif. Afr. 3-5. Tea GB with JH, also Mrs MacK. Walk both ways. Charlie M in late to see B. Wrote up Deb. notes. Eve

L + I did many acts. Some wrote before dinner. Eve mostly Agua - vicin.

4. Dull. Put in all rev's. acc. to Deut + worked more on ~~XII~~, chiefly typing Millers here to lunch. Work till tea. + did all possible on ~~XIII~~ for present. B to Ambch. tea, L + I here + 1+3 pp. after. Caught up on Times Ob etc. Eve Torg. on Boxing Day.

5. Fine, some clouds. Put in a.m. on I + got out + typed Tho' Dipr-walls. Lunch Legation, also Shaw + Rox. L + I at 4 to Mus. for presentation Mys. sword hilt from Friends Mus. Large meeting incl. Prince Nick. Marinatos spoke on awards. Back to tea. Typed out Pump. at 6 1/2 to Vasilis. Eve STimes + LN.

6. Fine, some clouds. Worked am + pm till 4 on I cutting + adding all but ATT. Had to revise + do 2 copies sometimes. L + I out

to see arrival of Princess Frederika, on ATT, but got dark so we saw almost no one else but had good view of her. Cold out + very windy - Late tea, Missie here. Dinner eve = 3 Robinson, 2 Rankin, Orlando, Marinatos.

7. Greyish. More I, chiefly ATT. + pasting rest of chapter. Out 2.30 to Acc. for B's lecture on Prop. Big crowd students, very cold. Inside Nicki + splendid chance to see little t. boxes, walls, alter + inc. Did all about Prop ending in Pinak. Glad for hot tea on return. Typed out Att. etc for old copy. L + I pp. before dinner. Eve Times + marking in ~~xc~~. Began ^{cold} LN.

8. Fine, snow on roofs. Did revisions in ~~xc~~ typing on old version. Till 3. Out to market. fine views of snow on Emb. Bright sun-shine - Back 4.30, ATT - nest covered lemon tree w. blankets - L, B, I to tea at Hill School. Also Mr Rayner. Back via

Kodak - saw illum. & decorations. To tents for mastic, lots here. Piet returned for a few hours. Finished cut & paste of it eve.

9. Unsettled. Day of wedding. Gave etc. 2. I out c 9.15 to H. Att, big crowds but K Melas took us into garden - we stood on gate & saw it all. Rain before end.

Back to hotel, T, H, Uncle E (fin.) Prince, Cleared fine p.m. until Stewart. Tea at Miller's to see Sibyl Carlisle & her cousin, also Ericsons & others. 7% after return

Tony in eve. Fin Boxig & began now.

10. Fine. Am. in School library, chiefly on roles in I, Demos & Char. etc. Outly 3 to N.Mex. Some clouds but fine snow on mts. End. 300 + pp. before tea. Concert, A Wolf, 1102 in 3, Ram. Cast & P. Ballet Suite, Friesch, Ch Gym, Ranch value. Didn't like him much. Eve

Linea N.

PHOTO

Tessera N.

(Cognome e Nome) Mrs. Ide Hollow Hill
(Via e Numero) 156154938 Philarach Street 9

(Prov. di) Sicilia) Città
Alessandria)
5

TOURING CLUB ITALIANO

in Mauritius.
and him dash
esp. Thes. wrote &
- ch. formz). May
- Circuit to see
to Tsamados &
4 sets later & L.
when before dinner.

"
ay until 4pm II,
no parts to show
incisi, Archley, See,
al. Back for a rest
ta. Eve to GB
Centri. nice party,
5, Monter, PM, Nic.
after.

- collected B. from
in 2 hrs. Splendid
some low clouds.

Kodak - saw illum. & decorations. To tents for mastic, lots here. Piet returned for a few hours. Finished cut & paste of II eve.

9. Unsettled. Day of wedding. Cours etc. 1-1 out c. 9.15 to H. Att, big crowds but K Melas took us into garden - we stood on gate & saw it all. Rain before end. Back to letters, T, H, Uncle E (fin.) Prince, Cleared fine p.m. Uncle Stewart. Tea at Miller's to see Silv'l Castle & see cousin, also Ericsons & others. 7/8 after return. Tony in eve. Fin Boxing & began new.

10. Fine. Am. in School library, chiefly on holes in I, Demos - Char. etc. Outly 3 to H Mel. Some clouds but fine snow on mts. Emb. 300 + pp. before tea. Concert, A Wolf, Mozi in J, Ram. Cart & P. Ballet suite, Friesch, Ch Gym, Ranch value. Didn't like him much. Eve

more Tony too. In a finished du Maurier.

11. Fine. Barbara's birthday, had sent him death on Nile. Worked a.m. on VI esp. Thes. wrote & typed desc. parts. (Also Demos & Ch. from I). May here to lunch, she L - d to Cineca to see pictures of wedding. Later to Tsamados & got 2 dresses. Back to tea - 4 cuts later & L. More VI, esp. H. temenos & garden before dinner. Verifying etc eve. 24/11 eve.

12. Greyish. Got in a good day until 4 on II, mark, cut, paste, type all but parts to show HT or someone. Tea Messinai, Archib, Gert, Parmale, Vilmos, Mavroy. et al. Back for rest before dinner. Reading Pepita. Eve to GP banquet At League for tents. Nice party, variety of speakers, Neely, K, Monks, PM, NIK. Cheeful occasion, except after.

13. Fine. Off to Cor. c. 9.45 - collected B. from Aerop. Left after 10 am. in 2 hrs. Splendid drive, snow mts. though some low clouds.

Tessera N.

849701

Linea N.

(Cognome e Nome)

156154

(Via e Numero)

B 1938 Mrs. Ida Shallow Hill
Plutarch Street 9

(Prov. di

Foggia) Città Atene

Lunch Oakley, also Charlie, Mary C, Pitt-Son
P's caric. & Byz water col. Bought C-P
back, grand drive, home 4:30. Sat around
talking after tea. Marked III 6-7. Played 3
games L, 2 P before dinner. After dinner
out & passed III. Good Morvid conc -
later Br Haydn var. Millions Br?

14. Fine. Worked on II a.m. Typing etc. At
12 to 1:30 for fitting, found May. Then
to Agora 2:30 & did Aus, Art, etc. with
Missie. Back to tea. Am Sch Open
Meeting, C Morgan on Corinth 1937.
Mashicha afterwards at Sch. Eric rev.
Art. More things than, papers etc.

15. Fine. To 1:30 a.m. at 10, then Am ex-Vonk.
After lunch, typed 2d copy & etc. &
did bits on I(Acc) II etc. 3 games after
tea. To concert of Quartet, Rivaldi,
Beeth, Raoul, very good. Eric began
Torg. Late marked IV & V.

16. Fine. Wrote T. Concert (pic) = Haydn
"Queenlym, Leon III, Cassella Triple Cone. w/
him, Bonucci & Poltronieri, very modern & int.
Then C-conducted his "Italia." Wrote H
after lunch & FW & part E Woodruff when Geo
McF & Mikita turned up for call. Home for tea.
Scarlett, Arch, Alison - Lucy who stayed
after Fin. EW. To Euclides for nice call. Eric
Torg. struck. Read Pepita in bed.

17. Fine. Worked on XIV art, paste, type till c. 12
then to Oriada. More XIV after lunch. H IV
in. Out 2:45 to May & she brilliant L & J
had a fine walk 3:30-5 around Tomkov. &
Omaroff back & back by top Payne. Then for
tea. H & R in later. Left tea. More XIV -
four raptus dinner till c. 11 when rest XIV.

18. Fine. Did some XIV then L & J out
on foot via garden, kyd, Trip. etc along
N side Ave. for general look. Then to
Ave., esp Old Prop. On way to mess -

met Mrs Mac V. Thurs. closing so we did s. side Paeth - later GFS came & we heard abt. approach to Paeth. No M brought us all down. At ~~XV~~ till 4½ L + 3 games after tea. Scouting in for masticha. Eve Tony, LH, some ~~at~~ cutting & pasting.

19. Fine, wrote F.M. Worked on ~~XV~~ till 12, then Oruda. Then till nearly 4 then L + I drove to Voul. before tea. Later had 3+ games w. L + 3 w. Pitt. Eve read Hart ST - a little Tony, then marker ~~XVI~~ - ~~XVII~~. Earlier typed Notes ~~XV~~, ~~XV~~.

20 Fine. Held out my old hat box, then to work on ~~XVI~~ most of the day until 4:30. Also filled in some gaps in ~~XV~~. L + I out to tea Archee for the French who is leaving. Later to Davis's - stayed a long time after the party was over. Back c. 9. 15. B had ret. Cor. + out with Geo MCF. L + I had

3 games before P. B came in. Discussed and Paeth. later.

21. Greyish. To day for outside lectures. Rain later or drizzle. Worked on ~~XVIII~~ + ~~XIX~~ till after 4, then 3 games L. To tea McCarty + Washburn, B. in latter - L + I to Vasili. Eve chiefly Tony. Gt Journey.

22. Grey, wet. L + I out after 10, got anem + cog. left them at ~~TB3~~, then to meet F.M. on automatrice, also T.L.S + co with a big delegation to meet them - At hotel soon after 11, back fine. Took old rooms 633, 635 then all out - talked over vermouth till after 12. Put in a good p.m. till 4:30 on ~~XIX~~ which got done eve. some revision Stevens's wall + knave. 3 games L before tea. L, B, I to Aust Sch. Good papers by Raubitschek on Jedic. lime. + water on turkish reliefs. Big crowd, incl King. Eve mostly looking thru Proleg + Thomis.

23. Grey, drizzle. Began T before all & went to concert, Massick Conci = Corralan, New World, Mons. Right on M, Thibaud in Mozart D, Massick Lala. T. Arthur best. After lunch T, H, Massick. Dug out a lot of notes, libl. etc. Bradshaw - Kelly in c.s. when we were dressing, saw them a little. Tea at M, smallish party, then late. Pat Morgan's for caricature - Fine Tong & some "Small Talk."

24. Unsettled, windy. Worked on holes in ~~xxi~~ exc. for short call on F-M before lunch. Mon ~~xxi~~ & some ~~xxii~~ after. Kelly & Bradshaw here for tea after archit: lect. 13 to Cov on 6 Autom. Mrs Paton for late call. Back to work & till dinner. Eve 2 times, Tong, saw Mrs Stevens again.

25. Fine! More ~~xxii~~. L & J our catch for Mrs to see new gold cups, now in safe case. 3 of them, one w. high handles, two small in

Also had a look at houses, much cleaner. At ~~xxii~~ after lunch when H-N came w. flowers - Out - C 3 - got M & drove to Navarre. fine rains & sub. snow, got anem. on soot. M to tea & also Miss Haspell full of news of digs. Later to Creek Legat. Eve de N, Punch, S down.

26. Fine. Finish typing Notes ~~xxii~~. Had good day, did ~~xxiii~~ & ~~xxiv~~. Call Marie S. 3-4. To GB for tea with F-M, then all to Thibaud, met us there. Barth. F, Viotti Amm, Chausson Poeme, Clair de lune, Saltarelle (Wierszawski) Rondo Cap (S.S) - encores. Back & g. Eve ST & mon down.

27. Fine. Off to Thebes at 9. To BSA & got Young & his daughter. Thebes before 11 & spent till 5 exc. for lunch at nephews' restaurant. Cold in Mus., much to do with lighting etc, but I took several photos. Back to Ath. fine dinner with maps, lovely sunset, plenty of snow. Left plates Emil, took them BSA &

Here at 7 for some tea, change - then on XIV before & after dinner, making, cut-paste most of it:

28. Fine. Spent a.m. on XIV, all cut notes. Here for lunch: Mrs Baefour, Miss Crowell, Miss Carlisle, Mrs Maurice. Later typed notes. F-M here for tea & all to Amherst for Stearn on Agora. Very nice. Went early & CM had saved fine places for us. Back about 8. Ere Times, Ob & some Tony. Trip Sym. from somewhere, also last night: Rush & Co.

29. Fine. Did fillings-in from 9/2-11, then out via gardens, Marinop, old streets to DK, & back. Gorgeous morning. To Acc. 2½ for Lect. beginning at Beuli & ending at OP, all over hunting blocks. Lasted till 6. Very windy & much colder than a.m. I went early, left F-M & in for tea soon after 6. Both exhausted

L-J to masticha at Triant. nice party. Ere Times & looked through new JTS.

30. Fine. No concert. Up late. Wrote T-14 before lunch, Son - May P. after, books w.l., clearing up etc. Grey & cooler. Out 5.15 to 4th Coll to see the boys do Tempest, interesting though heretical, well acted - Back late. Ere L-J finished Tony. Read some in HT's Coast. book.

31. Grey & dark, drizzle. Worked on XVIII, mark, cut & did W pd. Also got L to read XIV. To tea with F-M at K. Geo. fine new room w. window. All to concert, Knaffelsbuch, young & energetic: Egmont, Mozz, Don J, Birth etc. Back late, near Hanby.

Feb 1. Greyish. Working on XVIII, Min about 11/2 - we had a great bout on HT's Sto. Cleared fine during a.m. B-J to his lecture 2½-4½ on Park. Left M, Young & friends on my back. Later got F-M & took to School Sta.

Brought L back anem. - frescas from stem.
Ere much talk on Path, Germ photos etc.
2. Fine. Spent most of day industriously
on XVIII, APr Epub. Mrs Skoens in c. 4 to
ask us to dinner. M-F here to tea, also
Marie S & later L on H. after Mohr's exhib.
in top form. Marj. in late left her after
the others. Ere marked XII. H Hes, Mo2 C.m.
3. Fine. Spent a.m. on XVIII, as far as O.P.
L out errands. Some XIX cutting, then out 3:30
walk H.A., Oly, Gaid, Del. A few drops on
way back. L & I tea /Brownies, P joined us
there. Left Antoniades on return. Ere
ST, then part of XIX needing revision -
Fraz. on O.T.

4. Showery. Worked on XIX intro, I-II tho N.P.
Lot of typing. Too wet for Aer. so now p.m.
for an hour. Off 3:30 to Ath C for Quartet
some Viraldis - Bath. as at concert. Nelly
- the Papadims. for tea in common room.

Took Marj. - Mill wrote us to Book Club
meeting. H & R met us there, business con-
tinued. Took Tento home. Ere began Tony.
Had Br II Tone, Wagner - Haydn - Rome.
5. Wet. A.m. on XIX, S.P. - much disputable
material. L read some more steps. B to a
lunch - committee at Ath C. Worked 4/11 3:30
or so. 8 games pp. with L. To tea Mrs Paton,
also 2 Horsfield, 2 Robinson (key) Mrs Mon-
junto, Sebastian, Harrison, 2 Davis. Back to
Ath - collected F-M & out to Davis' to
see moving pictures Coll - marimba - very wet.
Wet night. Read Times - finished Hornby -
6. Still wet & windy. Began T, then concert
with Knapp. Meist, Fanautatos in Schum,
Tristan Waspel - Liebstd., Bath II. Best
in Wagner. Great audience. After lunch
finished, T, H, Midland - 3 pp. when L-A
came. Quick change. Then F-M & much
talk. Later all but L to Euclides -

4. T in great form. Back late. Eve finished 3 chaps "20 cent Musicians", Stow, Stow Elgar. Began "Helen's Tower."

7. Still not. More ~~XV~~ incl OAT - drastic cuts. L + I went over ~~XVII~~, ~~XIX~~, ~~XIX~~ after lunch - I typed some revisions. Some pp. till tea, F Stone here. L + I to Vasili. Eve back from help, also Enrica. 2 Times + some Helen's T. Finished Joyce W's "Pereus" in bed.

8. Wet. Cleared out a lot of papers. Discussed Distr. with B. L + I did ~~XVII~~ and began ~~XVIII~~. Started c 4 for some games. Tea w. Mrs Robinson, F, M, & Stevenson, ^{Walter} Verna, at T. Geo. Prince Mich. died late a.m. Big crowds out. Back c 7.30 + saw rep. for Gates in ~~XVIII~~ before dinner. Pict-out. Eve J-S on Sagittarius, some up in Rein. Rep. de Vasas. Later Helen's T.

9. Still unsettled. ~~XVIII~~ Distr. wrote, typed + passed muster. Did ~~XVIII~~ with L till tea

lesson. Made alterations + addit. Meame after lunch to paint - with L + I cleared up more ~~XV~~ + ~~XIX~~. F also here to tea + we went to Biel. Cinema to Le Stigme, awful bridge. Called at Germ Sch. for B but he had left. Eve read Ob, ST, JLN.

10. Brilliant! rather cold. Spent a.m. largely on scraps, WBD, etc. All off early to Acv. p.m. for B in Ereh. + some OT. Had to leave by 5 on acct tea F + M. Took them down with us. Later to GFB, also Helen E + Constance de Lion. Much talk. Not back till nearly 8. Times + Helen's T. in eve. Albeniz Suite, Solo + solo + piano Boulez.

11. Fine. Worked hard a.m. on old Partch. Cable Mabell G. to get wreath. To Flérians after lunch, then GFB for F + M + to Mar-Dam, orgos in Tomisso. On to tea at Satiades, also Rox + Shan, Anna, Mrs Melissini, Mrs Petro, Vasas' man student - Dined

Legation, also F, M, 2 Davis, 2 Holland,
Schantz, Beck.

12. Fine early, slight late. Then to G.P. 10½
+ had fine place on steps to see all
procession of Prince A's funeral. Very
impressive - Bar outer, rain, back in
taxi. After lunch chiefly on ~~xx~~ + got
most of it in shape. Staffed c 4 to go
to Fleiano + Antx + collect L from Oruña
Had 3 games before dinner, then began
Tang + worked on it + eve. P. out. Fin
Belie's T.

13. Wet am., hail, thunder, wind. Sun out by 11.
Wrote T + H, GNM before lunch. Out c 3 +
left B at Aerop. then to Psych. with cards
Phot. + Foster, then Chalaurie + Monic Bent.
Back c 4.15 + had 5 sets before tea. Out c 6
to Millers, then G.P., upstairs. Eve another
go at Tang, but before dinner went over ~~xx~~
for omissions etc + in eve also did N.B.D.

on Odeon Park. Read 20 ~~E~~ and Mrs, on
Race.

14. Fine. S.T.V. Spent a terrific a.m. revising my
own typed ~~xx~~ to fit other, also notes. Mrs
Heron here to lunch, took her later to Sam +
h Mary's for early tea. Ci boat reported, so
left Mrs H at G.P. + met "Foscari" c. 5½. C
in good form, no delays back quickly. More
~~xx~~ until dinner. B on Ave. 411 c 11. Had
Br bird cone from Wren + I Sym. Leip.

15. Fine. Worked chiefly on ~~xx~~ + ~~xviii~~ notes etc -
Geo Raymonas. Invitations.
B's architect class here for tea, about 10-12 p.m.
them. Later L + J to Nelly Evelynides' mar-
ticias, mostly musical lot, Papad, Theodorides,
Lykoudis, Athanasiou, several pleasant stan-
ders. Eve Eroica from somewhere. Read part
Murder in Dan, Freeman.

16. Fine, hardly still a.m. Went at 11 to Ave.
after getting Her. notes ready. Found B, Cr
Wagner doing shorts, blocks all off. Digging

around circuit-wall S. of Part. Checked up a lot in Mus., still in a mess. GPS showed me sites of statues in front on side Part., also grille places in w. portico. Took him & C down when L + Katie came. Fine pm. so L, C, I went past Boyatti + had a pale view of Depth, having gone first to Dion. Collected F-M for tea. Before + after dinner L + I checked up on Xmas cards, then Ols + de N.. Had Bach Suite, Br Variat from Breslau, later Bush. Gigue + now Schum concertold'Avangard) from London.

17. Fine but more wind. Worked on Xmas, Dinn. Founder, "Powers" etc. L + I read over last of EE. She + I to Davies' for day at home. Brought letters back. Dinned Stevens, + 2 Macs + 2 Robinson. Saw GPS new vector. f w facade Part. 18. Fine. Gathered up loose ends, putting more ms. in EE (1st - end) - some form.

Left B + C at 12. pm + went by back road on to Vari + back to Phil. Tea with Itagr. Took old Tong. + after tea finished it. Read Buchanan Ang before + after dinner. Costal from Buda, Schum + Sym Variat.

19. Fine. Started working on letter to CSD. About 11, F, M, L + I to Kaisariani. Hot wind + much chasing - L + M painted, F + I walked around head of valley past other spring. Lovely out, not very clear but fine winds. Back c. 1.45. Tried to straighten out a few more points in Gen. esp Eng, which am revising. L + I at 7 to Variki - Ere papers, Bug.

20. Drizzling. Wrote T, H, GML. Cleared out many papers etc. L + I rearranged detective stories. Read some ST. Mrs Morris here to tea (SC had sore throat + couldn't come). H + V also. Then call G Baker + her husband, Pierson, Fr Min for a little, also Daniel. Up to early dinner in Loring with the students, much

walk after. Back by 11, waked home. Read Punch in bed.

21. Windy, unsatisfied. Got rev. done in XII on Eng. & looked up a lot in Jnd. et al. After lunch did XII on Philop. Tea CFB with Fr M, Robinson, Sisson, Rox, Main S, May Stevenson. Later F, M, B, C, L & I to con. cent of Gk songs, fine - Solists Akis Papa. Constantinou & Phorosso Rotikola, the partie. good, fine cho. like ergone, ierion, clav & mand-guitar. Great success. Back late.

Saw all new photos. of Paul. Read Aug.

22. Unsatisfied, cold. Washington's Birthday - Worked on XIX(Philop.) & further revs. Did some XXI later with L. Big tea 5/2 - 8 pm. all American. q & family - Buffet supper after. L & I had a go at Tong, but made small progress. Began "Forever Ulysses" by Redocnacki.

23. Fine. Left Acc. for a time & began further rev.

I & II. Got C 11 for good walk. Gard, Kyd, Trip. up & down via Theatre. L & I out 3-5 a fine drive to Laurium, pract. whole road good now. II after tea, then tut & Ugo. Dinner Davis, also F, M, A Pallen, Calvo, Foster.

24. Fine but very windy. More dict. from rev. given by Lucy. Then I & II rest of day, started to copy II to show H.T. After tea L & I looked up some words & did Tong, a horrid one. Dinner CFB with Fr M, also Shear, 2 MacV, Rodney, 2 Morgan, 2 Young, 2 Davis, 1 Euclid, & 5 others.

25. 5 snowflakes, sun trying to come out. Did II most of day, many add. refs etc. L & I read rest of XXX, XXXI & part XXXIV in p.m. Fr M to tea - all to Bi lecture on O.P. at AmSch. Great success. Eve Oh, ST & some JLN.

26. Fine, some clouds. Did II till after 11, then L & I to Glyph. near Pasp. & I had an hour's walk while she painted. More typing II until tea & after - John Wright

here for tea. Dined GIB with Robinsons, also 2 Dubhabin & Kneizer.

27. Greyish. Up late. Wrote T.H. before lunch. Did J's book with L. All 4 to lunch Rautenens, also Robinsons. Sunflowers spread, nice aft. L - J tried Tony. Miss Stone here to tea. Come Rome w. Br III. L - C to Euclid. Finished Ulys before dinner. More Sug. in eve

28. Greyish, chilly, windy. Stayed in a went over all 1937 Ag. reports looking for additions. Charged typie ribbon. L - J went over rest of XXIV - XXV after lunch. Went to Paam. with her for her fitting 4.30. Began after tea to address envelopes. Phoebe 7/21 we sat around with drinks. Eve had Coriol & It Sym. from Buda. Read 2 Times & Cong.

Mar. 1. Still greyish. Worked on I till 11.30 when to Ouida with Fenwick post. To GIB, F - M until lunch - 13. out - with Geo McF.

Typed some AT - then L & J addressed a lot more envelopes till they gave out, then wrote cards. To School for tea early, then 11th when Princess Royal opened new rooms. Terrible omelet, Tatina & I got in but others went home. Good place close by. Mick, Mary, Monet. Music. Dropped in - Janet, then home & all to Hosfield's, large cherry party. Eric Pagan. come, & Hat. Read Times & Sug.

2. Fine. More env. & cards. Did some on early chs. Out 11.30 with L & Tatia to Psych - had MCP, Wyeth & H Howard to lunch. Fine walk in woods during their season. Wrote more cards p.m. L - J to Bellmoris to tea, later to Kohler's cocktail party. Eric divided invit. & stayed in B - C to help. At it - till about midnight. Brine & Baileys.

3. Drizzle, rain later. Got I pretty well into shape. Called for FM 11.15 after leaving a few envelopes, & took them to see Gillieron. Later to New. Things, jewellery & 1920 room. Ran into

C and Braud (Or. duar). Took them along - C & I in with Form for a resourest. Looked over ~~xxii~~ M. to see how many gaps left. Out 4 to Orida, by on Fenwick, Robinsons Rec. To Phil. - left some inst. Back late tea. Got keep on Tong. - did last one. Eric Ob, 26 Nov.

4. Some clouds. Br & C off by early train. All M. in before lunch for books.
a.m. filling gaps in I-13. Till p.m. Out c 3.15 - left some cards, then 1/2 C to fine recital Spieldoplon - Fraugia. Sat n from Delta r McLean. M laid up with cold. A/f delivering invitations. Back & got L & hot tea at Yannakis' with M. F in bed for cold. To Fr. School, Demange's summary of Philippi, Delphi (incl Kreis a pub) Crete, Nisabello region. Big crowd + singing. Horribly windy. Eric has SP. Matt from Vienna, Mengelb., fine performance, followed w. score.

5. Wet & windy - Put in a busy day ~~2~~-~~xxi~~
Rotten cold so stayed in - ~~2~~-~~xxi~~ am. After lunch read some Mr. Tracygold, then ~~xxii~~ Bill tea. L & I tried some Tong. before & after dinner, early to bed with story book.

6. Fine! Long morning, sat up till 12, finished Mr. T. in bed. wrote T. Begun H. Got soon after lunch to Brauron. Gorgeous out, but road all to pieces. Back before 4, finished H. Back to Tong. before & after tea, in sunny bedroom. Angie came & L saw her but I stayed upstairs & read SI. Romeo & Eroica & Kodaly dances - unknown. Eve read part Fog, V Williams. Cestot in Emp. from Prag, also Bach Toccata & Br IV.

7. Fine. Grand day. L off 5/2 to Cor. Took Gladys D. Stayed home to get rid of cold so lay in bed most of a.m. Nearly well. Spent from about 1.30-4 in garden in sun. Real 3 presents. Went over ~~2~~-~~xxi~~ for repairs

before & after tea. L back about 8 after fine day. Picture of Cycl. in snow. P. out. Aug in eve.

8. Fine. Began revising and ~~read~~. Out c. 11 for F-M & to Voul. where L-M painted. F-I scrambled around rocks. Great activity in crater where they are to build large bathes. Back late lunch, C here for it - Times after & then more OP till tea. Papers after - L to Vasili. Call from Thomas. Eve Tastini viol conc, Br II from Warsaw. Finished Augustus.

9. Fine. Rev. - typed provis. on OP etc. Out c. 12.30 to Ouidia with L. Dashed off after lunch, got F-M & went to Merkoush hotel out, left M painting & walked on my back. Later down on, then another stop near oaks, with anem. crosses etc. Tea at cross roads place, out in sun, back via Patiss. L to Team. Read papers, also

in eve. Br II from Hambr, & London. Painted in bed. 10. Fine. Got together things for Pyx. Puffy T. in for short call. 11.15 got F-M & went Pyx where L & M painted & Fr I saw walls & then to Obs. for Nymph incs, kindly shown by gardener. Up top near Obs, r.h. side, in fact, overgrown w. geranium. Then w/ Marina & qt. search for Dros, has all the children etc. Finally got it, as I said 3016. B turned up at end lunch, sat late - Read Times. Odd & ends, table etc, also over H-T Pyx 2 art. Big tea, 77 + 5 family - Went off well. Scrap supper, read Rumbin Galleries eve, early to bed. 11. Fine. Began Mrs S & some scraps. Out 1.15 - visit L-Katie to Paget. Walk to Davis (out), met car. Ouidia 1.20. Typed out Mrs S & Cyp to and Ica - got them off when I went to dentist. F-M for tea, Dumebians later. To Ambel Bronzes on N Slope, case etc. Eve Times & Rumbin Galleries. 12. Fine. Rewrite on chariot misc. Typed -

But 12 & saw L - M on Pnyx, then over to Phil. & across w. side, nice park, to s edge & up steep dump to mon. Met others
below. Cloudy p.m., began rain. Typed out copy chariot for our version & kept. Did 2¹ book with L. Poked round for maps &c. After tea read Times, Pol. Digest, Phar. Early dinner, dressed in time for news & aest. Off to 1st Call "Torch Bearers" swimmingly funny, 77 us.

13. Fine at first, rather unsettled. Wrote T-H. Looked over a lot of Phil., p.m. for ills. Took F-M to Italops. for tea, also Per. Mano & little Greek girl. Left them G/F out to 1st Call. to play, here for 2nd act - from back. Others out earlier - King Paul - wife, dress, cash - various followers. Nice informal party in common room during 2nd interval. Ere had tried Tony. with small results. No 2 Mayan hand.

14. Unsettled, windy. Started early & got home at 11.30 - all to Elmiss. Sunny, but very cold esp in sheltered parts. Saw new at Art, new wall on E side, up to top Pnyx, Rom house, geom house, new annex for pots & ts, big Mrs. Back to lunch. Checked up a lot on & all for own copy, tea c.s. with F, M, L, C at 5 Geos - to Polish concert, Fitchburg - Bandowska-Turka - Moniuszko Domes Myth, Aria Rafka; Kalowicz from Dances; Kiechowicz, Honeysuckle, Szym Nightingale, Zuleika, Roxane, Moon; Scherz (instead Szy. & Szym) Moniuszko, Masquer - Ere Times or Koplan.

15. Cold, some clouds & sun. Spent a.m. School lib. hunting references. L comes with F-M. Got L to do some ills. choosing with me, I, XIV, XV. To Loring for tea Doren & M Hill, also Pier, Harris, Washburn. To Vacili 6½; L, C, F-M to Jacobi in at short. on Aphrodisia - Ere Times - finished Koplan.

16. Fine, less windy. Went over ~~XIV~~ - ~~XVII~~
making 2 copies agree. Some before -
some after lunch. Big sea, 69+4, all
went well. Picnic supper. ~~At M.~~, later
had Bach Mass from Lond. via Prag. From
10.15-12.45 with music.

17. Fine. ~~XIX, XXI~~ until 11, then took Fr M
to Ardettos where L + M painted. Grand
out. Fr J walked all round then sat in
sun. ~~XVIII~~ after lunch. H + A in later.
P. I for tea, then L. Went to fr M's and
to Daisies. Stayed for news at 8. Eve
read Obsr ST. Good Haydn Muz.

18. Fine. All a.m. & a little after lunch on
~~XX~~. L C, I out c. 3 to Menidi by upper
road, across country to Chania, back from M
by lower road. Lovely out, so went on to
Koropi wood, picked red anem. - dug up
orchids. Late tea. L - I old new new Tong,
before & after dinner. Began new Moto.

19. Fine. ~~XIX, XXII~~. Out 11 to Daphni, Fr J
walk pines to picnic place. L + M in
courtyard. Cleaned out papers from book
w. L, now J. Out to sea Pater, also 2 So-
tiriads, Stan, 2 Stoman, 3 Young, 2 Davis, Mrs
Adriides. Took Sot. home, then to Vlachop.
masticha. Ere times wrote T + H.

20. Greyish, sun out by noon. L, C, I off 5.45
via Thibes to pub. mound near mill this side
Laradia. Wet climbing up, lots on top, esp. Ett
rl H. On beyond past Chav. - dry road to H.
Vlasios but couldn't get on. Tried another also
had to turn. Much road repairing but Chardilia
station. Fine road to D. now, not much like
that of our famous detours. Picnic lunch on
hillside before I, by mill + church St Serafim
higher. Mound there too, largely red. Up to
D. village, grass veins though not very clear.
Back 7.15, stopping to pick purple anem.
near Thibes or beyond 3 Meats. Read most of

Katina Pschyas' "Rêves païennes" (MN's).
L - I did some Tong. in eve. Fidelio &
Walt. selections from Leipzig.

21. Greyish. Hectic a.m. Tel. from Washburns
during breakfast. Scraps of work xxiv with
many interrupt. till 11.30 when went to
Negrop. to make her date. After L's lesson
she & I to Phil. Took 4 hats. Out c 2 1/2
for M and went to Pentile. L-M painted
little church at end road. Walked woods,
duck, up among new houses, farther hill
etc. Back by 5, here to tea H-A, Washburns
& Wood (but not Rome). 2 Benedicts
here when arr. but left at once. L - Visit
after tea. Party on till c 7. Typic etc. for
xxv before dinner. 2 Times - Tong.
after. Finished Katina.

22 Fine, grand day. Typed in II & did also I,
VI. Lunch here: Mrs Miller, Miss Stinson,
Miss Laemmle, F, 2 Benedict, 4 family.

Later L, C, I out to Dam for fresh air. Went
to Legation big Am party; Tricouphio, Hadjiki,
Ere Times. Max in, Bartok II conc., Faun,
Petrovitska from Buda.

23. Fine. Did III - IX a.m. Out 1 1/2 to Phil.
XI in p.m. Tea Stevens & another at Thru-
res. Brief pause & tub. Dinner with FM,
2 Courthope, Pallas, 5 p.m. Nice party.

24. Fine. Began XII. Out 10.30. L-M to
Pnyx to paint, B & J Acrop. Saw 2 holes of
OPS, big wall end Chalke & along colonnade
in noon place. Later saw B's hole under
9th col. Mouse hole, lava step inside. Met
Courthopes after, also Mrs Dimidki. Left, &
to Pnyx - found others, coll. B at H arr.

Early lunch, took C. to "Ring Castle," back
before 3. B gone to Coll. Did rest XII +
XIII until 5. Tea Rallegas, also 2 Macs,
Maxine, Maruzia, Max, many relatives. Had
lesson in Pinochle. Got deep into Pallas's

"Gr. Anat. Adventure" before & after dinner.
P. out. From Buda Don J., Schum. Concerto
(Kempf), Br II.

25. Fine. Not holiday, decide to cut parade.

Put in an industrious day & saw a few rot.
dries from window. Added & rev. a lot ~~XIII~~.
After lunch L & I went over IV & V for rev.
Before tea 4+ sets pf. Busch ~~IV~~ from
Rome, Haydn, Schubt, Busk. F-M in for a
few minutes before 8. Many tel. nos. chan-
ged so did over the small directory. Eve
Hg, ST, St N, Pusch. From Leip. Don J., Busk
III tone, Br III. Couldn't get thing on new
Gk. writers.

26. Fine. B ff for Cor. at 10. Began further
rev. on OP. Off c 11. 30 for Sunbeam.
Took Yogo & Yamaki - Grand day. Some
dirt in tank so had to stop to fix it
& arr. just after 1. Others already there.
3 buses from Marashian, but nice girls -

Table out on rocks, lovely time. L & M got
out paints, F & Count. & I to temple up &
down hillside, flowers gorgeous. Left c. 4 &
all here for tea. Finished Pallio. Eve 2 T.
& some Tong. P. out.

27. Wet. Cleared fine before noon. Wrote T
and H. After book it, had long go at Bach
Mass. P back early & we had tea. Then L &
to Miller's, several there. Back c 7.30, P wrote
gram. on Schub. Duo Bach + Kreis. Scher. later
Eve ran over Rom Spring.

28. Dizzle, cleared. Showery ff - on. Revised OP
during L's lesson, then to Am Ex. met F-M &
saw about boats for Cate. F & J got cardigan for her
at sports place Phil. dock, paper etc Pr K. Mix up
about meeting. F & I at G3, others Benaki till
late. Ready & for lunch, rather exhausted. Time
settled to more rev. & copy OT till tea. Ath.
went Cor. about law suit; Pablo drove us to
concert - Prague Z, very good. Brok & Schub.

Concert Hall (into used later in Ros).

Horn Bush Rondo, Moz. & with piano, Faer.
ter II, Blumen See + Var. Arch: Concert
Evangelides, not much good. Fire read
"Macbeth."

29. unattractive day. Had an industrious day with L's assistance - ~~II~~ - ~~III~~ final rev. & checking & typing. Maj. in before lunch. H.A. here for tea. Early dinner - to "Macbeth" by Dublin Gate Co. very good.
huge crowd, fashionable event. Back 12.30.

30. Fine. More ~~to~~ on changing numbers notes to fit re-arrangement. Letter part a.m. on plans & maps. L out with K & crowds. Wrote B & sent OP revs. Out 2 1/2, L at 11 to paint: Little church beyond Pent. mon. Had a gorgeous walk in woods & on hillside. Left M, to station to order paper. Back for tea. To Optician for "Moonlight Jovana", Pad + Marie T. lonely -

P. out. Ere read Ob & St. N.

31. Fine, milder. Put in a busy day over maps,
WM in ^{PM} in A.M.
H.A. etc. L + M to Am. Acad. wrote Mrs S, pm.

For tea F, M, & Court. Later L + I to Market,
Moz, Schum, Kaltern (new, with Spielg. Fr.) -

Back late, Taty. eve - Punch later.

April 1. Fine. Got some notes into shape. Out 10.30 via Gard, Zap, to Acad. to verify 29, 30 then Th. Met Walter there. To St. for coffee. A. came for me. Got revis. typed in after lunch. Out before 3 to Pier. wood & picked lots anem. No' pretty far open. Back c 4, L 10.30. Tea with F, M, & C, at Te Grot. L to Kas. Back Mass till she came in - Decided to early dinner & all to "Prosch's" wife "very amusing - Speeches after.

3. Fine. Began tracing Ind. Fig 10. Lod off c. 10 1/2 to Am. Ex., re Alice's boat, money, order cabin for Crete. To Agora, saw Pict & phys. of arch too, many of them in his room - out to Kornos for Thalos & its cent. buildings,

temenos, boundary stone, staff, etc. To house to see varied tiles from O. Ren in L's office. Selected some plans to have photos of for J. L to Orinda, called up M^{kt} about changing dinner day. Finished tracing Red Times first, then did summer clothes with Marita - L. About dead. Tea ^{Zalichí} ~~Karab~~, went II + III by bus. to Horni's house. After tea L - I stopped Tatina's (out) then Pax + Shan to see new flat. Eve Times, began "It Can't Happen Here."

3. Fine. Wrote T, partly off in taxi to Olgy for Bach Mass, very good on whole, right orch. pretty loud. Fluency, fine, Spil-Fr. excellent, Delenda satisfactory. Persian, n.g. Bach C. z. Did J's book, fin. T, wrote H, had 3 sets ping pong before tea. Read some Lewis. Eve Trag. hard to get started. "Gulliver." i also from Mrs.

T. Fine a.m. Tracing plans till 11.15 when to

Orinda, Piss, Antek, Theophanides. More plans after lunch. Did Jud 39, 23, kept E 137 F 7 (Praga). Out to 4½ tea at Danies, Precious C, Kondrat, 2 Phil, Lansdale, dogs + kittens - nice cherry time, began to rain as we got there. Wet after C stayed till after 6, then I dashed to Olgy. To Bach, terrible seat #3 but didn't matter. Took Skender, Dolos, Petro home on way. L stayed late till nearly dinner. Late dinner c. 9.15. Schub II from But, not well played but can't spoil it. Not much eve left, Times. Kent's daughter.

4. Wet. Chiefly maps + plans, traced J's Ave. out. Line roads Karam, also N side Ave. from Mich. After lunch L + I went over E + I made a few moves. Past 3.30 to Tatton, Carlo in "Maria Malweska" not very good play, but she was fine. Dashed in to Alex. for vinegar, quick tea home, to Basilia 6³⁰-7³⁰. P back + all has remained in solonaki. Eve Romeo, Klein Nach, Tom Job.

Tuesday, Jan 16th.

6. Grey, unscattered. Same game of planes etc.
Rev OP with B's comments.
Finished N slope, did R. marker etc. Revised
rest of S - II w. L's notes, filled holes.

Katina in after tea, then a big marshcha at
Eugenides'. Eve ST - obs.

7. Fine. Woke early but thro' a mistake abt.
hour of boat had to rush Ash. to meet
Alice M. and Katina Coe - then by c. 10.
Later all of 10 hrs. A sat in car, L, K, J
to top. L - A later to Pnis. K - J did
Acro + Mrs. till nearly 1, then collected others.
Late lunch, traced part of Sins. on OP stat.
Out 4 to Egy. Exp. re May P, Ambx (rooms
in Ctes) Pr Kl pants). All pp soon after 5
to Mary, for tea & stayed hours & had
fine time. Too late for Gavas. dinner 8/
2 Mac V, 2 Dair, Mrs Baefour, Lauderdale,
Kent, A, K, L, B, I. Mac pp - early to Fr.
Legat. Party on hill toward 12.

8. Fine. I took it out for a.m. while A wrote
letters & I traced 3 places from WBZ. Late
lunch, NT in at end of it. Started c 3.30
to take Ark to "Excavation." No trouble for
them, saw them to gangway. Posted a lot
of A's letters on return. Here for tea. Began
tying OP till after dark. Back for us to
have drinks upstairs. Eve read Punch - a little
Monog. GPS in before dinner to show site
of bull etc. Tel. from Mary. before dinner.

9. Fine up early. Began rest OP, tel Florence,
off 9.30 to Marmon - for Cor. coin for Trif.
L - Katina out for lesson, finished what I
hope is last version OP. Off 11.15 to Ouidah,
walked back, cleaned up things. Lunch
Legation, Mrs Mac, Mrs Tiffany, L & J.
Back c 3. Did J's work with L. Did news
items with her, also B. Then Eccles - M-Coutts
to see L, Kelly, a drunkard, tea, revision re
Ergam (GPS), to GB for story of the trip. Eve

after times wrote T.

10. Fine, some clouds. Wrote dinner & mid.

Typed on Stoer until c 11.30 - then to Mrs - met May P before 12. Had a good griph before & after lunch, L & I took her to Sun. Laundry out. Back in rush for tea with F.M. & Count, H.A., Tiffany, Hammond. Later took M to "Hellas", back c. 8. Eric wrote 2 AM.

11. Grey & unmet. Rain by sea. Put in a terrific day typing, chiefly A Patr, Metr Boule. st. Fr M, L & I to Costel & orch. Ray B, Elenka Parzine & Schum, & Chofin F min. simply divine never heard C better. Eric some Tug, sleeping & turned in early. B to Cov. on 6 1/2 am.

12. hot, horrible day, occasional let up - then pour. L read some for me. Did Telos, Hadrian st. Have it - III about in shape. off 11.30 to Mrs &

saw Sonne, Yang, Kouris being set up, 3 BM students LRT, Gill. To Am Ex - met Fr M - got tickets for Crete, money etc. To GB for drinks before lunch. Terrible deluge p.m. - chiefly typing. Wrote Council re sending car while L at dentist. Tea at Antoniades, small, then Arch Soc to hear Marinkos on dest. in Crete (volcano Thera). Eric ran too' pictures in Evans.

13. Greyish. Windy. Work, chiefly reading 110, 511 11.30 when Fr M came & we looked at suitcases. F.M. & I to Alex for supplies. Left them. To Tsam. with grey coating due to fix. Left suitcase GB, to Am Ex etc. Packed after lunch, L having had some time for Mrs Items, & for more chops. Filled car, gmt FM at 6. All 15" Andros; fine surprise to find 70 de luxe. Had 38, 42, 43, good cabin Good bar, excellent dinner, turned in early. Began "Shadowed" by Bellor, calm, moon!

14. Fine, lovely river of Crete-Candia c. 10, ben.
line for landing, very comfortable. To Min.
5, 17, 18. Left things, walk to Mrs. Grand
new building beautifully arranged &
lighted. Furniture, br., geom upstairs, not
below. Lovely day, charming in park. F. & S to
Minos for our provisions, all lunch out.
Wide cafe opposite garden. Back for a
short rest. Tourist Police most after
time, exc. car (bus) to Knossos at 3.
To villa, Hutch. & Mrs. M. fine welcome.
Did site thoroughly with H. Hill tea. W
court, Aga bust, Couloumi, paxos, S
W. entr. - S prop - staircase, magazine
gt court, throne, depositaries, round corners,
keep, herald, theater, & entrance, pillars
house to N, portico above, steps & porch,
laid, E W cor, double axes, g. Meg & all
around, gt stain, terraces, shrub, S. cor
& back to villa for tea, also Hovefield

Out again to T Tomb, Cedar, mid, S. or big
entrance etc. To Taverna for wash & raki.
Chevy dinner, 2 Honeyfield, Miss Alice,
Money, Coults. Blueberries at last. Beautiful
moonlight night. Back soon
after 10. Worse of hotel: lack hot water,
also L's bed collapsed - great time to
get another set up.

15. Very unsettled, partie. bad in direction
of Phaistos, bus left 9.45, very muddy on
roads, lots of clouds, some showers.
At Delta before noon, Mandi's nice ad
son took us round, St Titus, Odilon,
Code etc. Very muddy under foot. Grand
drive in spite of weather. Parked in field
below Ph. & so wet we had lunch in car.
Set up some but with sticks & umbrellas
slidered up muddy path, feet like balls
of clay. Tourist house excellent. Scrapped
us off, hot coffee. Saw old guard we

used to know. Rain pretty steady, no distant view, worked out plan from porch, then in less hard rain did palace, had to be hasty - not see everything. Sorry no view from mts. Left C3, the ride mud going down but survived. Omited HT, far too soupy to try. Got back before 7, Castro did shot. Had hot wash & scrub, dinner Hello Boy's excellent, had indeed, arghinoni, lamb chops, fried potatoes, fresh peas, orange. Got a box chocolates to send Krossos, pretzels, marmalade etc. Rain again so we went back. Turned in early.

16. Still unsettled but much better, even some blue sky to S & W. Left 9.30, have excellent chauffeur Michael Angelo Ies. Splendid drive, sun in & out & little rain. Magnificent beyond Nallia where had never been -

Got c 1/2. to St. Nich, nice little town in grand position. Hotel Lato, simple but looks all right. Let 3 on the bay - Went in car to restaurant opp Mar Nero & had excellent lunch, chicken soup & omelet. Full in with Tourism man,

- left & along to Gournia, splendid drive, sun out part way. G. far more impressive & better place than I had expected. Right I - not largely melted away, town is fine, followed up hand streets & small houses to top. Palace smaller but much finer, esp. masonry, not I right. Up & down & into many houses. Decided to go to Pachyammos but as we had sent no word we found it - locker, built in a grand place. Began to blow hard & some showers so returned & it cleared up. Very windy at St. N. Made

tea in our room & 4 o'clock skinned ready to paint. Unpacked & tried to catch up on diary. Wind drizzled, etc. Same place for dinner, escoved back.

17. Worst wind & rain ever, nearly all night. Beggars description. a.m. let up off & on, comfortable in bed so up late - waited for better weather. Off c. 11.30 & fine down to Malia, little rain. Took train all wound as much as we could, very impressive, but terribly damaged by weather, esp. magazines etc. On to nice place above sea for lunch, in car. Cleaning all the time - Stop. Tiron khani - Kerak. c. 4, left wings hotel, tea hello boy, heavenly - sunny - M - I walked thro' old parts town & out on breakwater. Had ordered dinner

for 7 but boats left at Great fires at Syros & Aerop. Tried boat, glad we stuck to Aerop. Calm, starry, moon coming up. Aboard before 10, ff 1.30. Has 2, 4, 6 cabins, good service, clean.

18. Perfect morning. Calm, blue, sunny, upper deck, nice st office, bridge. Heavenly trip, good lunch, an. 3.30. Dashed up Ath., met Marie due 21st. Tub, tea, wrote T. Dashed off to Vassili at 7. Read 3 times eve, early to bed.

19. Wet. Cleared somewhat later. Put in a good morning, reading though, writing Ares, left. repairs etc. Many interruptions - telephones. Air letter from Marie due Calikha, c. 12 so I went to meet her - sat back till nearly 2. Odds & ends p.m. HV in for call, Lr Marie down to tank - I typed. Dinner: 2 Demagel,

- Young, Hammond, F.M., 5-family - 13 back c 7.30. Geo Kostosp. in c6 for long talk. Returned later to see B. Party went off well.
20. Unsettled, up rather late - Notes, etc., Ben took Marie to Mrs. got her ticket. Did soups. Young photo. Rose was aided by Honor & Ashmole. L came 12.15, all three to Penelope Stephanou before lunch. Went w. B to Piraeus, boat late sailing for Cyprus. Back for tea. L & M at Byz. Mildred Cook 1917, dropped in, stayed for tea. L & M off to Am Ex. Wrote H before tea. Planned time table with Marie before dinner. Sunday papers at
21. Unsettled, not too bad early. Wrote Katina, 2 bro. Off 9.45 to Am Ex & Aer. w. Marie. Did all round till 11.40, mid L. Back to house. Left c. 12 for Sun.

Gorgeous day - drive, etc. lunch Tourism. On up an hour or so. Back by 5 loaded w. flowers from friends at Kifissia. Changing then Mrs Stevens came - At 5½ F.M. for birthday tea, Ben Tom W, Helen & Jamie, Miss Bailey, 2 Hammond, 2 Nathans, 20, ran on to a masticha till 8. P gone to Peacocka - Eve Oh & ST, 4 Gym, Emperor. Turned in early. 22 Fine. Got M off by 8 for train to Aly. Back c. 8½; train had gone. Ambx mistake, so worked out new plan. Saw her to Aerop. Went to Ambel library for a.m. doing a lot of rep. Nice & quiet - only 4D & myself. Back 1.15, Marie & I lunch, left c. 2.20 for Kais. where L & M had gone to pains - & picnic. Early out. Big tree down in gale but by a miracle escaped church. Back by 4. M & I to Goudas to see aristria, back via ST. A. to see Ettinilos before tea. Quick change. Took M to 7 o'clock autom. for Patras. Into Souda

who had eat next. Got Fr M to Howlands
maritcha for Mrs Moore, also sister etc.
Tom W, Parsons, Jones, Kohler, Vandepoel, Stein
& a few more. Back 8.30. Epit. passed very
late, nearly 10, lots of papers. Meanwhile
had Bach Passacaglia & Double fugue, IB Sym.
JLH - Punch after.

23. Fine. St Geo postponed till Monday. Made
most of a.m. Rev. acc. to library work, traced
Jud Exch. L and M again at Tais. Bay
from Liopas (Kunaki) brought us Easter bread.
Began going over MS for loose pages etc. did
I-KM before tea. Grand day out. L & I out to
card place, Del, Bouli chow. GB with donkey
for F.M. To Timor, to Negrop. Back c 8.15.
did other chores etc, ran a little Tong -
Easter service was broadcast but a horrid
washout that cut most part. Only night
for candles, Marita bought our lights.

24. Fine. Odeonches. Red eggs etc. Wrote T.

Began going over Notes to see what had to be
copied, also see I had a revision to keep. At it
all a.m., 2-3, eve. Out 3.30, got Fr had fine
drive, near Bogiati little road to Baphi, met
Easter procession. Tea in Davies' garden, also
Cars. Took Fr to GB, later met Marie 7/2 at
train station pleased with her trip. Work till 11 1/2.

25. Greyish, St Geo. being celebrated. Did not
go out but put in a busy a.m. on Notes. W.M
till 10-11. L took Marie to Sch. Genn. etc. Typed
part of L's News items after lunch. Work till
tea, F here, P back. Left Fr 6 books at GB, - L,M,J
to work. Very interesting clouds & light effects.
P. out - for dinner. Worked till 11.30, getting on.
Wrote C.H.M. before dinner.

26. Fine. After odds & ends, started 9.45 for Mrs. &
did Myc room with Marie, pub. room, card etc.
To Am Ex, Engl Phil, Maroon. when L met us, got
embr. for cushion. Back c 12, finished packing, 1/2 -
lunch, off to Megara - like a big fair, saw all

the costumes but dancing not till 4, 20 left.

Met Mari, Jeannette & Co, P. Trifunovic. Off to Del.
The - a grand dinner arr. c. 7. Had 12+20.

Good dinner, walk in village after.

27. Fine. L went to paint - at Marm, & Mr J to
temenos. Much digging round old mosaico
down to bottom of temple, lots of LH sherds.
Met Bouognon who showed us all round,
also his bearded! companion & 3 Ge girls. To
theatre & got ready to Stad. then rain
came. Stood under tree, then down, got up
with umbrella - car. Back to hotel for lunch.
Only a shower, cleared off. L painted more &
then joined Mr. me in Mus. Rebuilding in
full swing. Evidence much in evidence.
New E wing for archaic, has Tass, Sph,
relief of Tass, 3 maidens, Noses, many
arch. frags. Had seen chariot & Br. room
at other end last year. Central rooms -
an extra one at back being reconstructed.

After sculptures, went to basement where
of , a nice blond youth - Roger showed
us some triads, ranging from some EH, a lot
from LH to LH. Good lot from mound, Gt. above.
Now covered w. corn. Saw many ter. chiefly
rotin fern, from big deposit near temple.
Back for tea, showers in valley beyond so did
not go far, to bag shops etc. Very sleepy &
upstairs early to rest in bed. Lakeside.

28. Fine, grand day. Mr J & I on foot 9/2 up
lane by hotel, round on top, Fr. house - to
Stad, down to Cast, Gym, Marm. Then we
met L. Left 11.45, splendid drive to Hirad.
Lunch out in front restaurant - wonderful
color - light & shade effects all the way -
Right side! Tables, got backbutters in a
field near Khan on loop. Elmasis 4/2, died
pre. or mes, stopped Dabk. Back by 6 for a
late tea, Poeme in, unpacked & tub. Wrote
up diary. Good mail. Dinner Taverna

Kretikos, has Gk music, good dinner, amaz. decs. on wall. Ashmole went too.

29. Fine. Spent most a.m. going thru' notes to see what needed for library. L took M to Benaki. Came for me 12, to Amalys, left them & to Griva before lunch. M out with Panay. Iph. More work p.m. till 4.30. Tea CFB with F.M., Mrs. Eust, H.Eust, 2 Kafatos, Macf, Mary. Left early to take Marie to Piraeus, off on "Rodis". Returned to sail end of party. Caught up many old papers before & after dinner. P. out. Looked Mrs' Vassos in eve.

30. Slightly overcast. Spent a.m. in School library, quiet & empty. Only Verna & A.B. Looked up dozens of refs, chiefly journals. V said Uncle B was arriving. Back soon after 1. Settled down by 2.30, J's book etc. L then went Piraeus but Uncle B at Minerva, found him at cafe. Went 5/2 H.CFB for F.M. to Legation

for tea, also Miss McLeod, lively old lady. Later to Glyph. to Treets, out but found them walking. To Min. to see Uncle B. Back c. 8. Eric typed more notes etc. All of us sleepy, to bed early.

May 1. Fine. Aristedi put wreath out early. L & I up betimes. Writing Th by 8. Long a.m. on looking over, numbering etc. L to meet Karo (train late), got Uncle B & invited him in. Back B him. C's mom. He went School 12-5. Hard work till 5, think it is as nearly done as can be for present. L out to Lop. to Thos. day. Tea Euclides, then took F.M. to Shears but we did not know till later about one. L to Glyph. Wrote H before dinner. Strenuous here eve, finished H after.

2. Fine. Got a lot of work done, details etc before lunch to which came Karo, Leonid, 2 Hammond, Ashmole, 3 family. Uncle B down later. Put K & W to naps & went to

Psych to Rento, out but found them on hill.
(no natives Sat.) To Davies' garden to see
brights. Tr M tea earlyish tea, did a
few scraps. Vasili at 7. More J in am, but
with H before dinner.

3. Fine. Did last appt for present. L + M
painting. Went over numbers again &
finally tied it up by lunch time. Had
some back + Br. after lunch, this is wrong
for I wrote Amst - C. Out 3½ hr for Tr M -
to Paenes. Enchanted with 's'. Tea there.
Back after 6, to Petrol. till 7.15, + got
J + Lucy + all to Phil. to say farewell.

Dined Rano + Venck in their little
house. Back early + turned in.

4. Fine. Packed, beginning 6 a.m. Did
wash. Rugs off 10.45 - 10 am Ex for
money, passport etc, also Tris +
Jack for purse. Back for a few min.
L, Uncle B + I to lunch Davies, also

Elder Morgans, coffee in garden, Gausman
too. Back c 3.30, wrote F. Home to tea, F, M,
Androm. Later Cuaday, Kelly, Harris, 2 had.
Dinner School, also parents M, Davis, Sean,
Piet -

5. Fine. Packing. Good early start + got most
all ready by 11.30 when to 2 ap. to see Jay
+ Wm Exhb. Here And. said some of Sch.
things - were 4 uplincs, stone axe, gold caps,
some letters etc. Exhib. well done. Back for
early lunch + got message boat full + we
could not go. Much rage. Wm Burns -
sent ticket back. Uncle B. at lunch. Rather
limp after, cleaned out old papers, read
Tel, Obs. etc. Ran out c. 4.30 with pots of
cherries for Mary. Back to tea, F + M home.
Sent Ath. for B who ans. "Clio" c. 6.

L + I had a go at Tong. papers - bed -
6. Fine. Terrific business about getting
away. After much Tel. went to Library,

Then L came, no cabins, decided to try for train. She tel. later abt bond receipts. Back to lunch - Cleared out a lot of papers, wrote to T. To Ouidah & around, tea F-M at Geo, then took Ex for ticket. Round Acc. etc., dined 7, went ports. to stat. by Ark - left 7.30, B saw us off also. John took us. Slept in "local" for Sat. 15/16. Beware next time, sandwiches, but slept some. Sat. before 8; tea etc in cafe by station. Off 6.45 for Alexandre - Best new train I ever saw here, good corners. Sometimes compl. to relax. Lunch on board. All around the map, but p.m magnif. in Vatos valley & all the trip was interesting. Alex. about q. gas automatrice, good one - slept part way to Python, frontier. No trouble luggage my slow passport but finally on Belg. Sat. supper - left late - slept.

8. Fine, good luck w. weather. Made up some time to break. but orange, kouloris & ham sand. left over. Sat. 20 m. late, met by Kath. - Geo, quickly roughed up. Arr 11.30 & ETB at door. Unpack & take before lunch, big crowd in there p. after. Got settled, washing, reading etc from. Tel. for TW Rejovals. Wrote T before supper. nice fire after. Turned in early. Wrote H in eve -
 9. Fine, sunny & breezy - broke early, sat up & read Miss Patrick & Sultano. Breakfast by 8. L doing Bosph. view. Began F-M. Left 9.40, to police, then instant. Ott. Bank, down hill to find Hermes office, for C's pat mending stuff. To office for Canale tickets with help of 6.60 Belkis. Booked for Wed. To 10 Sph. at 11 & met TW up in gallery. It has lots of fine new mosaics, cleaning more in groups of chr. & emp & empress, Paul, ditto. Up to top & big scaffolding in apse, magnificient

M^o G, archangel Gabriel, a good deal left. Simply superb apse. Late in s. gallery Paul, Chr, Prodromos. Gejvalls also here & all lunch Bayaz. with Tommy, very jolly. Left him 105 rph - to Pera P. with Gjs. Sent wire Carl. To Natta, tickets June 3 Crimani, 17-18. To Hermes ordered supplies for C. Bank to collect proceeds. Bought Hermes Baby, looks fine. Back to Natta for tickets, then out by upper way. Coll. 3.45 - had brief pause & finished Fr M. At 5 to ka Wrights - saw lots of people we knew. Back 7, change, diary. Bridge eve 100 to 150⁵⁵. 10. Fine. Wrote Uncle B. Real monst. Off C. 11 to Hermes, sweets, bread, Museum. Call Agia, then run though quickly - Met Jeannette, Scanlon, Gunny at 1.15, lunch Bayazid, then to church - Diatonia (down) S. Theod. (under

repair, but saw fine facade). Outside walls to little mosque with wonderful tiles. Back for tea & a vat-tub cater. Deniz Wrights, also EB, 2 Canadi, 2 Scott, Seiko who is really name Aug. as well - 11. Fine, somewhat greyish. Finished Pat. Lr & I did packing - things to leave in S' cupboard. Sent Cheyne Haffen & Blaauw (Karo). Under BTW. Coffee party after lunch. Off at 2 & Gunji met us with things from Hermes. To boats now Zhao Custom or station building, but also run boat. Took "Kemal," small but clean, cabin 5. Left at 3, Gejvalls also - Quite a nice enclosed deck to sit, lovely weather. Took picnic supper. Began "Jasmine Farm". To bed in 1/2 main pine. 12. Fine, not too bad a night. Up 6 & ate remains with tea. Gunak at 7.30. Met by someone from Whit. Also Mustafa

skinned, 2 cars, 1 board new Chir. To Bacons, Mrs B. lively and gave us breakfast. Maj. Lee here too. Nice talk & later round garden with Miss C. To police for permits, many forms & took forever but they were very pleasant. Collected Eccles - all out for lunch, dinner as lovely as ever, building new branch road. Warm welcome, power without Jerry or Cedric - New Comm. genial but not talkative. Got un. packed & tubbed & rested after lunch then pottery room, mountains of ours, including one huge. After that did part round with C who has started work near E Tower - on which we are to continue. To Dot - site of Jack's. M working indoors. Eve briefly catching up Times.

13. Very windy, real gale, so we did

not go out till after breakfast. Friday 13th, 13 men & I celebrated by tramping foot but carried on. Good set, with lots of Rom walls to take out. Yaya, Ibrahim, Emel & other old ones on deck. Cleared a lot. Eccles out again. Wrote up diary before dinner.

3 sections, E, M, W with 4 pipe lines. Finished "Jas. F." Eve began "Brynhild".

4. Windy, but less cold. Sun trying to get out. Clearing in all sectors, paved area, taking out of wall. Paved area prob. ~~to~~ to house, partly on Di plan, cut by his trench. In E area found part wall making a unit. Heavy door slab & pipes, C. phot. Sun in & out, generally clearing. Eve Bryn & Br I.

15. Fine, milder & less windy, sun out. Work up till 7.30 as it is Sunday. Did shots & did bushes. Spent a.m. on cat. of Myc sheets from our dig. Wrote T, H, Miersch, HHC.

Finished sheeds by tea time - L off to
pains - I did the round. Eve papers,
Brym, Br II

16. Fine, not so cold, less wind. Clearing down in
all 3 areas, washed & broke f tools - a
pink. stratum, also got most f knives
cleaned. Switch on track so can have 2
cars. Bailey - Pette came a.m. - I went
round with them before lunch. Good mail.
Nothing exciting doing, just going ahead. Eve
Pastoral. 2 times.

17. Fine. One of the best kind of days. Still
going down in W + Mid. Removed
old house walls etc. Bailey - P. again
wrote old Gao. after lunch. Steam roller
out for road which ends nowhere.
Begun "Decline + Fall" (though)

18. Fine. Another grand day, warmer -
Roller at work - Reached 4.25 in A.
west f W. area. Dug in middle. Gen.

clearing up in siesta. L washed wool stockings.
Nothing special p.m. just going on. On veranda
for first time before dinner. Fine sunset.
2 Times + Br I conc. eve. Finished D + L.

19. Fine. Some breeze, much sun. About 30 ca-
mels out with charcoal at breakfast time.
Many photos + sketches. Still going down W
+ M. Rollin F-W, all we miss Jane -
Wrote F after lunch. Still clearing. Had
a hot go at wall in S before tea. Sat on
veranda + read "Hampd. Wonder" - no music.

20. Fine. Began summer schedule. Huge mob
school children out 10-12, all over the place.
L did view of plateau. Found scattered
2 O in W area, one by araba track. Much
burnt. Deep in middle sect. 5 spouts
+ lots f streaks incl. big red orange - kaunes.
Nearly down to bottom. Read Maughan's
Play in siesta. Finished middle sect.
pm. Then more in A. Johnny moved

sorting piles of sherds on field.

Wrote card to do, letter EDWB. Party
on dig partly sherds pm. Eve SW.

27. Fine, nice day, breezy. Found group of
stones, (what?) in W sect before breakfast.
Did bones etc on field till 10:30, then
out. Dug in trench to S. 70°. Stones out
- sloping to S. Party eve with ice
cream & macaroons.

28. Fine, coolish early, then warm. Finished
W sect, clear in corner. Also cleaned
up middle walls - C took photos.
Out all a.m. Got rest of walls cleaned
& removed earth pile N of wall II. Lovely
eve on veranda, Times, 15 Marsfield. Eve
L + I began on inventory of pottery, W house.

29. Fine. Sunday, no hurry. Up c. 7:15.
Washing brushes, began T. Out all a.m.
doing sherds. L + C in workshop.
Finished T, wrote H. Did a lot of pottery

listing by baskets w. L. Field again till 6
except for tea. Finished KM on pack before
dinner. Worked more with L after.

30. Fine. C started men on other work so he - L
pottery + I packed. Mostly sherds etc a.m.
as I came was taking down wall II. Co-
pied rest of list. Final packing tubs after
lunch. Got away about 2:30. Long drive,
a few errands. Had permissions already.
Tea Mrs B, May L + Miss C. Long time
+ they gave us bread butter + cake to take.
Seen off by Lee + Whittall Mustafa on
"Tayyar", big boat, cabin 6, clean. Took 2
chairs for deck. Picnic supper. Beautiful
sunset - calm sea. Quite nice saloon
orange reading in eve "Murder at Broad-
stall." Lampreavers + Collip.

31. Fine, beautiful day - calm. Long stop
early a.m. Tea in saloon, lots of room all
day on deck. Rest of eggs, bread, cake.

4 big top blocks now g. in pm. Then they removed rest of wall. Veranda before dinner. Br & tea. eve.

21. Fine, some cloud, turned off. Warm but a breeze. C phot. healths, 3 men clearing carefully. Sold wind sifter. Got both healths cleared & out before eve, - almost as deep in S as middle. In E sect. S. part - Carter pm, damp. Shower c 7. SW eve & early to bed.

22. Fine. Sunday hours. Up 7.15 for odds & ends, washing etc. Sorted sherds from W & M sections till lunch. Nice out, good breeze. Wrote T, Trinity, H, Mabel G. Back 3-6 except for tea. Papers on porch. Eve Br & - Death of Mr Dodsley.

23. Fine, another lovely day, rather warm. During day got all S - all Mid. eve. part under wheelbarrow, found several big blocks for wall,

very puzzling - cleared in E, much pottery in trench, took it out. Dr out to see Jack, gripe. L painting in 2 places. Fine eve. 2 Times on veranda.

24. Fine, more wind. Finished in Mid & E c. 5.75. Clearing off at top along S. side. A lot of dirt. Still going down in trench of W. L & I took out bones etc, after phot. - Carrall. Nothing special pm. Finished Dodsley on porch, 1 Yankee eve.

25. Fine, cool & breezy. Hard shower, then sun & lightning in night c. 2. Freshens things up. L taking out pipes & set, W as usual, others still cutting down S. bank. Large part of big grey bowl from w floor being put together. Wrote Little Annie about Duncan who died May. Also wrote Cotton. Nothing new later.

26. Big storm as we were about to go out, but it soon cleared. Slept am. back & bp.

Boat clean but very slow, nearly 5^o
when landed & found Becker. Time for
labs & unpacking & weather before din-
ner. Much talk after. Early to bed,
terribly windy in night.

June 1. Fine, busy. Off before 10, Ann. police.
Dalmatianches to Turkish hist. exhibit,
which was excellent. Splendid pre-
historic sections wonderfully arr.
Night have had better examples
from Troy. Went all over, all periods
up to present. A fine show. & bright
with us. Then to 4th police (near rail-
way stat.). Left passports. To Rustum
P. mosque in alley, near Bazaar,
fine tiles, inside & out. Service going
on. Up to square near top tunnel,
Dini for Griselda for dig. To Kappa opp.
Soc. Legat. for Mrs G's book. Lunch
Abdualla. Back to police, left jam at

PP for Jack to collect. Long wait - pas-
^{caul Emb.} ports, finally 13 got them. Up the hill - got
Baby blanket & piassofre for Elias wife, flo-
wers for Mrs Wright, left her Am Hoop. To
Mrs Citterpie's for call. College about 4:15.
Changed off to tea at Huntington's. In
garden. Later dinner Damon, also H.
Up in his garret study, full of books -
all sorts of things. Heard Uncle B's
letters after H's had left. Damon es-
corted us to gate. Back c 10:45.

2. Fine. L painting - Did many odd jobs
& wrote up diary. Wrote Mrs S. & AM.
KW, L & I lunched Mrs Citterpie. Back, left
L, Mrs G, Mary Howard & governess at Dalmatia.
Back before 3, did most of packing. Tea
by Miss B. to prep. seniors, songs, dan-
ces etc. Sat in Blue P. after dinner, gene-
ral farewell, turned in early. Reading
"Pilgrim of a Smith."

- 3 Fine, up early to pack before breakfast. Left after 9 for "Gimani". Not too quick with passports, but no trouble with them or money & nothing opened. Cabin 17-18, very nice. Ship slow but comfortable. Canad(s) also on board. Spent quiet day reading. Long siesta on bunk. Finished book. Read "Sat Night at Grey-hound." Dark long before Chania, c. q, turn Kali about 70. On deck, moon.
- 4 Fine. Woke early, read in bed. Up late. Sun. about lunch time, fine day but not very clear. Arr c 3, no troubles, Ath - P. met us. Home before 4. 13. arr. soon after & we are forcing him out by Mon. boat. Uncle B here. Unpack, tub, tea,太极.
5. Fine. Did wash. valise - wrote T. L painting garden. Wrote H on new little themes, not so very different

Began catching up after lunch on Eng. papers. P. in, Uncle B at table sides. GMTR came at 4, much talk, tea, J-L eaten. Took 13 to 7.05 for Cor. - then to Phaliron to Kao - W. Eve mostly Ob, ST, Punch & talk Uncle B.

6. Fine, warm but breezy. To US Cons. for new passport - 1087. Back to house - L returned & we went to Stad. Amlex & Nat Mus. Found Cicada, Ad mole, Rhomaios - looked at jet etc. in workshop. Read some Agora reports on return. Kao in to see Uncle B eat at little till 1.30. Cleaned & read old Ob or ST, early tea. To meet Betty Tasky at 5 but not off till after 6 1/2. Took her to Aerop. Met G there. Got Uncle B's kodaks, left & S to take him to Piraeus - hand over to Peter. Dashed back, others at cold dinner. B & Betty off before 9 for "Palestina". Read "Dorian Log", etc. in eve.

7. Fine, warm but good breeze. L & I planned part of trip. L & I to Am Ex ~~re~~ nicas, then Ouida. Wrote Hammond, GMH Read Dorian for siesta. But by 4 for G & all to Aer. Mus. to look up Antenor. Earth. joins. Then a room open & some koi in it - but still a mess. To OTB's dig house & saw arch. from head, prob Triton ped. Bad material, much smashed but many frags fit on to give all but lower part face. Blue-green paint - in curls, not on fillet, like iris & top hair. Saw lots of shards etc - Myc & later from Squeebles case. Teal (late) Agora, then Lucy shared us round. To monasteries, lots of walls, arch. heads etc. G & Mary S. here to dinner, ^{2nd} Ster. in afterwards.

8. Fine, warm, breezy. Wrote G, L & some throat so stayed home - I got G at 8 + off to Chalkis by 4Merk, field roads, much dust. Th-Ch. road in bad condition. Aer c 11 - left 12.20. Did kouros - heads 44, 45, 53 & another. Thubs c 1.30 & lunch out on pavement, good breeze. Mus 2.30 & notice them up. There 2 hrs. doing all the kouros. On to Eleusis c 6 & to Mus. Met Lehmann. Hart, & co in precinct, back 7.³⁰. Good hub. Eng. papers etc. P. out

9. Fine. Went out 9. Left L at 10, to Kodak, Amex (Gordon), Bubacellis, Am Ex (Syn). Back soon after 10. Worked on photo list for Jane & cut up rest for epis. After lunch wrote F, N trace. Read ^{7.30} Times, Dorian. Later to cock. party at Jones' lovely terrace, saw bats, another. Dined

Legation, also G - Mary & Kao & Penelope Lewis - her husband. Garden after. Took G - M home.

10. Fine. Lay out at 9, she to paint & I to hunt up real. cases above Askle. & read Levi's article. Then to Klepsydra to see AP's dig. Deep recessive into "balcony" - parafet. Conn. a. court outside? To Agora to see Piet's latest pictures, 3BF with horses, stand st. Good sister, finished IS. after Levi. At 6 to Bert Hen to Kents' Finished Uncle B case, also sorted out top part desk.

11. Fine, breezy. Wrote Mabel G, Dubrov. At 10 to Bert Hen Gdast. to select photos. Saw Wedekin - Jantzen who presented me with 1937 Geog. report. Real Dalmat. after lunch & sorted out clothes from all her bags to take. Went c. to Paspati, party for Indian girls, very nice lot. Many others

here. To Phal. to see J - L. Eric began a Tong. without much luck.

12. Fine, breezy. Did more sorting. Wrote to H. Catching up on old papers. Letter Mabel, wrote her again. Tea Millers. Party here & for Agora & School. Morgans in late, cold supper. More Tong & last of Oh - ST done.

13. Fine. Sorting more drawersfuls. Did a lot more mending. Out 10.30, to get 1st. a summer uniform. Then Germ I for K - W, Caps for Gis. Then all to new Iteram. Mus which is fine, light & spacious & already well arranged. Some new sculp. a new pieces, fine early warrior relief, big base to. vase & to rooms admirable. Had a fine round. Then took G to Thes. to see houses & also arch. Head & upper back & hair. Wrote well after lunch - did fi book & acts. n. L.

Read "E. Wind" in sister. At 5 to dentist, back soon & found Gis. - L at an cup of tea. Off to Hellenic, tea their own fine new building n. auditorium Miss P's house. L - I call late on AWK, all dined Karo-W, also Wedekin. Much talk & discuss of K's book illustrations, back late.

14. Fine, warmer. Did some abt. ill, to dentist 10, left 10½ for Paris where L was after errands. Took her home & to G-dst. & looked at more photo & ordered some. Garden party at Ann Sch. Big crowd. Later took A & L home & can others.

15. Fine, warm. Some packing etc. At 10 to Bert. & errands, long time at dance. Back to pack more. Karo-W. to lunch & he had sister 444. Read E. Wind. To Antwerp tickets etc,

very slow. Tea Store at Yann. Then at GPS, G, M, Mrs Mack & young German. San Bull, Eng, steps, statues ends - sides, 2 Pil, cedar. Bought S, G, M down & all hat ice, Zmar. About dead by eve, met Obs & ST. 16. Fine, cooler, breezy. Up early to pack, did a lot. L out Geo & Am Ex. Put in a busy morning. She did not get back till late. Too rested to meet G for lunch. John came for cup. Did books & acts. Brief sister reading C Mack. To Eng Ch. 4.30 for wedding, Betty Drinker & Wedekin. Place full. Sam Gorals just back. Left lunch at BSch & to tea Balfour, also Ray D, Taylor, Gordon, Morgan, Millicent. Po to be sent to China. To Euclid, Keph. To say good bye, garden looking fine. Eric had brief pause, began to pack some more.

17. Fine, cool. Up c. 6 for last things. got up 8.30 for Larissa. Long day, very breezy.

Made good time & hunched up above Bralo on side mt. with lovely view, not as far as big trees where we were last year. Wonderful oleanders in plain to Larissa. Coffee & beans here. Quickly to Larissa, arr. c. 6. Same room as before. Car cleaned & had a good rest before going out to square for ome & excellent dinner. Cost!

18. Fine, some clouds, cool, windy. Wore coat - same route - all well till on top pass beyond Ellassona when found spring broken. Took c 2 hrs for Atk. to patch it up, had a walk & a nice nap & I painted fine view of Olympus. Reached Kizani c. 2 - found a man at once to repair. Left car - went to the plateau for coffee, also a few purchases including Karamillas for horses & children round car. Nik Patasian whose weight off. has been in USA, gave us eggs. Left c 3, spring all right. Bus line to frontier,

not via Florina, bridge now built. Arr 5.40. No words to describe thorough exam. of everything - Civil but stupid. Ditto on Gre. side, full of ignoramuses. Not like last year. Took 2 1/2 hrs. Monastir shortly before q, intended to stop, but it was horrid town so made for Delvend. Arr 10.45 after drive in dark part way, many road repairs, one bump running board. Glad to see Bellevue, same room 22. Thankful to get hot water & bed. Rather a sketchy day for food, mostly picnic as we bounded along.

19. Fine, breezy, cool. Good sleep, nice tea & rolls in bed. Leisurely wash, repacked luggage. Hour charged. Long arr. Out c 8.30 for walk in the town & emb. sk. from Turkish shop. Back to make up diary before lunch. Good long siesta, read "Death in Tunnel." L painted. Out late to town, big tree, photos, park w. roses, tea beside lake. Sat late, lovely sunset, people rowing, full promenade -

Finished odds & ends & turned in fairly early.

20. Fine, still cool. Breakfast out by lake. Off c. 7.45, via Struga & l. to frontier, arr. 8.5. Very quick, courteous & pleasant, also on Alb. side. Cth. did all passports. Crossed at Qafa o Thanës away up on pass, view Ochri. to l. Then on this mts & much climbing, woods, lots of flowers, farms, etc. Stopped c. 12 for tire, 10 m. Lunch just before Elbasan in locust grove. E very picturesque, left c. 2 & via Borat to Tirana c. 3 or soon after. To Continental, Ital. near palace & new munic. centre. Got wash & brief rest, then before 5 to Legation, left cards. Dine in town, old & new. Later to a garden for room. On return found Legat. Caravans & mes sage Mr Grant asking us to breakfast. Good dinner in hotel, room full of St.

21. Fine. Warm now. 8.30 Legation, on out skirts of town, new, built by USA. Mr G most hospitable, fine breakfast, garden,

trips planned, photo etc. Decided to stay another day. To Ital Line for money, good manager whom we'd met at Legat. To Mrs. which has a few heads from Butrinto, bust one Aug., Scop. Mel. type & some portraits - Not much bot. key etc. Lovely cool terrace so I got paints & we spent rest of day there. Lunch hotel. 3.30 to Durazzo. Roads might be good but bad on top surface. D = Epid. English place w. a lot of modern things & chipping, some fine old walls & towers. Big villa on top, went as far as gates, fine view, splendid site for town, along coast to Agria. School built by WST. Called Mr other Alley, young, nice & son all round. Back after 7, caravans to say dinner was to have other guests, very quick change, much luggage. Nice party - Mrs Braden, Gen Percy, Gill-Creighton (?) doing book on Alb. Very successful.

22. Fine, warm. Legat. Before 8 Mr G sent

Suleiman with us. Along I road, then Sanc road to turn for Kruja. Entered first at morn. K a wonderful site, away up, Skanderbeg's castle & tower, very old town & shops with over hanging gables almost meeting at centre of street. Cobbles & central gutter - very pict. & unspoilt - walk round this' town & to town for view - photos. Cafe, nice under arbor. Ah had to fix inner tube so long stay. Bektashi - Fusha e Krujës Down to derelict monastery & had warm reception from Baba Narko to Mih. intro. Sul = interpreter, much pleasant flowing language, coffee, cigs, chocolates but to me magnif. old cedar. A great experience. Left S. to return by bus. On this' lonely country roads, oats, broom, byony, lots of other flowers. Lunch under nice oak tree, biscuits & potted ham. Then Alessio market, wonderful costumes, photo. Skutari & t. Grand H. in garden.

wash - rest & out for ices, maybe in offic. Club? Pleasant anyway. Clouds always passing, int. costumes. Caravan at hotel. Hill breeze at night, burnt mossy stuff. 23. Fine, warm. All was my duty - off 7:30 & again nice at bath first, only 25 min. for both. 8:15-8:35. Map showed small road, but it was a good country one. Later on main road, chief train Bar 74k. from Tatar. A magnif. drive along coast, mostly well above on new road. Little islands, phot. Many soldiers - place about, green arming. Later islands & along valley & finally joined zigzag from Cet. after having had grand view Gulf of Theodo. Tatar for lunch in same rest. as last year & then round Gulf & on to Durres. Here arr. just before 4, hot & dirty. Fine big room, floor above last year. Wash - rest till c 6 & then to town. Ice first on terrace, then to book shop & get

Profane Pilgrimage - Alb. Back Door & a new auto. guide. Walked round town to see all we could, fine to be back. Clouds out. Vermont en route. Dinner in garden. Less music upstairs, grand breeze. Letters from T & Trieste.

24. Fine, sunny but lonely breeze. Took early break c 8 on balcony, then down. Left L's films & hat, then had hair done at Veris, good. L pedic. Promised round town coffee, got old apron would do for cushion. Riccio's pal - some old parts up high in town. Lemonades to cool off. Lonely in garden for lunch. Wrote up diary, etc. Alb. Backdoor in Sestri. Out c. 5 to harbor & got motor boat for island Lakroma. Went round it; fine rocks, cliff, caves, strange formations like animals, landed in little bay. To Monza, fine cloister, supper tables for orphans.

Charming gardens, rather Ital. style. Got onto what must have been wrong path behind farm - up long causeway, paths in bushes etc. Lonely island but hot & shut in where we were. Splendid view east past, toward mainland. Back soon after 7 to port. Promised round for an hour or so before dinner. Lots of dancing girls. Sat on balcony.

25. Fine, warm. Fairly early breakfast - off 200m after 8 for Trabia, c. 30 km. Coast road, then turn - encircle big valley up to mts by fine road, wild mountains. Coast, grand mts. Picked up a nice peasant in red jacket. Market day, so saw lots of fine costumes. Gathered in by a hello boy, search for small tortoise, began coffee in plane-tree square. Our guide really belonged to Brit: party. To old harem, hot walk here, fascinating old house full of int. things, furniture etc. Splendid old man to demonstrate. 2 large rooms - west

passage in front, terrace w. view of river. To harem, now used for weaving. Splendid old town. Left c. 11 - back in an hour. Not yet very hot walking. Very easy pm, chiefly w. Black books. Out c. 6 for lemonade, filters, stroll around, emb. for T, presents etc. Met Mrs. B. in Shadone, from "Lorick". Warmer day so far, but nice in garden & balcony.

26. Fine, warm, L's birthday. Wrote up diary, wrote T. Out c. 9 to market, Rector, Dogana, cool shady, Orth. Church at 11 for a little, Franc. church, cloisters - Lemonade, in for more letters. H, B.
After lunch, K. Grant. Very hot, chiefly travel books. Out c. 6 for drive Lapad & to Ombla, lovely & cool. Later to Gradac park for view. Cool as ice.

27. Fine, warm. Did a lot of packing from 6 on. Out after 8, L painting on balcony. Did wall, some shadera

good breeze - Down by Place, & to Domini to see ²N Raguza & Titian. Repairs in progress. Took shady by ways to top & in - out. Met L in Shadone, many bells, celeb. at Orthodox ch. Got bracelets - L. a drl. To Dom. again, then coffee by sea & saw Eng papers, Times, Tel. etc. Fine & breezy. Perhaps less hot after lunch. Read Margot. Out late, hot, to photo places & gave them books to post. To sea place, very hot, so back to Dub. till dinner. Cooling a little, but hot at night.

28. Fine. Up early, but things took long time. Got away 7.45 & on to Metkovic. Lovely drive like last year, mostly by sea & lake near river mouth. Got fruit in market. Started wrong. Direct road to Split - under repair, so went on No. 10 road c. 11 km. & turned via Cappelina to Ljubuski & then by mt. road. Very hot

Lunch under some trees on sharp stones, part way up. Over Biatoro mts, easier but more small trees & shrubs than usual. Long zig-zag down, lovely pine woods, splendid views islands. Eventually Makarska - sat by sea under poplars - had coffee, but no luck benzine. Lovely drive on again to Omis, great pirate place, splendid port. Filled up. Only 25 km from Split where arr. c. 4.45, hot & dusty. Fine big corner room w. bath. Got clean room c. 6.30 along front - to ¹⁰³Varadri Trg, guided by friendly Ital-speaking lady. Had rice, watched the crowds. Round by Cath. st & sea front, vern. in front hotel. Dinner in loggia, some of famous lobster Bistro. Upstairs early.

29. Fine. St PrP service in nearly churches. No hurry about rising or coffee, fine breeze in room. Out after 9

along front - to Var. Trg for Bank, but closed for holiday. To Cathedral, St J not open so only saw door. Round town to market - back to bus where left L & went by shady ways back for her cheques, then Porta Cava. - recent. met her in VT for lemonade. Tried to get peasant bowl, market, no luck. Stopped to change money, back c. 12 to hotel. Still very hot & sticky, long siesta. Out c. 5 to Trogir, road work in progress, parts fine lots of dust. L sat on sea front & did some - I walked round most of the town, little back streets etc. Everything closed but the Cath. which was almost empty, great diff. from last time - heavenly evening. Sat in cafe for lemonade. Lovely drive back c. 8.15, dinner soon. Not much packing.

30. Fine but very hot, hard to sleep. Up early to park. Off c. 7.45 & digressed to chemists.

Excellent close view of Tihina so did not get out. Very hot & dusty all day but a fine dinner full of variety. At 3pm passed Tomis, where stopped last year, glad to go onto Kotor. Went through a couple of villages full of fine costumes & took photos. Intended stop Gracac lunch, roasting hot & glaring, got fruit from man under tree & cont. into country. Found a nice little oak wood. 4 children came but couldn't even learn their names. The good village carmen was there, up to top pass Sr. Troica where we got water. Many big upland plains full of wheat, maize etc & good woods. Left main road for Lovinae, Plitvica, Lubina, etc. Showers on the way, big rain in mts. to w. but we edged round it, turn Plitvica for lakes, beach woods.

23

Hotel on terrace above. Arr c 4.50. Not dirty, tubs, tea, rest. Grand views from balcony. Went to sleep. Had trout for dinner.

new wild strawberries. Terrible thunderstorm on us.

July 1. Glad to be cool. Up late, break. on terrace below, h painting. Sun round by 11 or earlier. Down to lake & out in boat, towards N. Landed on off. side, very threatening. Saw a few small falls & lakes then made for boat, a few drops. Shower just as we reached hotel, then a deluge - Good lunch. Cleared brilliant, but again black by time we went out at 4. Drove along lake, N, to bridge, across & up hill overlooking lower lakes, falls & gorge. Along Karlovac road. Terrible deluge, but it didn't bother us. Pract. no rain on ride nearer Rosjat. Left car at bridge & took splendid footpath beside all the lower lakes, wonderful cataracts, rapids etc. At end, w l., 2 high falls of Plitvica brook, ^{on m} cafe beside it. Also big triple fall to last lake. At 7 I went part way down for view. Fairly warm but lovely walk. Back c 6.15. Out on balcony before & after dinner. Moon

Lonely bright stars. Buses with picnic children off late, lights round lake.

2. Fine, clear busy. Did some packing. Too busy for talk. had coffee & L's painting just inside open windows. Left c 11 and drove to hotel at L. Then walk by lonely wood & lake paths, many fine falls & cascades, "Fairyland". Then back again, lunch at rest. under trees. Left c 1.30 - off to top of lakes, Crna & other woods, saw mills. Choke in feed so stopped, many children. On to Otočac & by same road as last year. But Šerif & Novi were run into on curve by an ass. Small damage to either, but unfortunately he is after money. Good hello boy for interp. - witness. Finally reached Šalec - found M. just arrived & with children. Flowers & songs. Up & got a few things out before tea. Also Yertich & Best Pæche, Bordovin boy to help for sum-

mer. Talk after, Ben got clean. Turned in early. Shower which cooled things.

3. Perfect day, views gorgeous. Breakfast on terrace. Then w. M. to see new wing added to house. Villain & policeman below. Went down for coffee, w. garage man, another from Šalec etc. & finally compromised & he signed receipt - short hands - wrote T, spent a lonely restful day. Bridge over L & 2 m. N of P much amusement, won in end.

4. Fine, perfect day again. Decided to stay over for children's show at 5 - Wined Trisch. Went c 11 to Crit. of us, awards, walk on front, ice etc. Yertich & Paul off c 3 to Zagreb for his travels. Good sisita, early tea. Nice children's party, games & songs. Much talk later from me.

5. Fine, perfect weather. Hated to leave c. 8, bouquets from children, all

waving us off. Lovely dinner same as last year. Susate soon after 9, very quick both sides. Fine dinner to 7 - am. 11.30. Same room Saroia. Did some unpacking & clean up before lunch. Brief rest. Out 3.30 to Customs for luggage, glad to see it. They tell Amely ENIT & agent got things out, registered to London. To Italia about shifting car, back to hotel for tea & Amely, Tourism for tickets, At. boat, TCI etc, marine insurance. 2 very capable girls. Books open for Atb. & times, ices in piazza. Back c. 7, wrote M - got a short rest before dinner. Turn in early.

^{late night.}
6. Fine, some clouds, less hazy. Packed.

To Italia & took car to co. warehouse.

L - Atb. ff for more awards - I copied out letter to Mik. which we had written

night before, to give Atb. to deliver. Also sent a few things back with him, but forgot others! Big rush getting away b/c. bus delay. Train 12.25 car 405. Lunch as soon as we left. Rather sticky & muggy, but room enough. Venice short stop ff c. 3. usual route. No trouble customs. 7. Fine. I made mistake about changing time so just got coffee before Paris. No chance to get out as train doesn't leave G.d. N but goes round. About 1 hr. shooting round sta. 4pm + Blue T. All quick & easy Bond - Fred. Our little steward got us good porter - very smooth crossing. Nothing opened. Pullman - train left c. 5.50 on arrival. Trunks already here, so L went for them, untouched, quick get away & Kings - 6.00. Room 1 but not the nice little maid. Am. with caravans, didn't come. Unpacked some, tub, dinner at Kings, & to "Mikado", fine. Very diff. costumes from old ones. Excellent performance. Tea - 6.

8. Unsettled, sun + showers. Phil. Marville at hotel on way back from Salcombe. Breakfast together + till c. 10.15 when off for the train. L + I to Agnes, where she ordered suit + mac + I got suede jacket. To Seaf. for hair - I finished first + got tickets Haym + His Maj. Walked to Esse where we met for lunch. Later to Co. tailor, Peaston, Mayronny back to tea for which K came. All places charged. Camb. called off b/c Lisa had fever. L + I dined in + then to "Operette," good but not up to "Bitter Sweet." Very well done, tea + biscuits.
9. Still unsettled, off + on. Up late + no hurry papers etc + not out till about 11. To Achille Lewis, gloves, Pound bag for L + hatbox. Am Ex. Com. Notes for L (Pinned away). Lunch Thistle, to "Yank at Oxford," excellent. Tea at Mrs. worns, thence, borrowed umbrella. Ordered some detective stories. Rain let up somewhat. Met 15 Germans for good

- dinner + then L Braith. in "Comedienne," very amusing. Tr. 10. Unsettled, greyish mostly. Up late, read papers, repacked bags + trunks all a.m. + stayed in for lunch. More afternoon post + papers p.m. Wrote T, B, EPariss. Dined Goss, JAKT, + Grants + visitors. All up in jackets after so much talk.
11. Fair, some sun. To Midland, Scala, back for L + VSmith with furs, insurance, Com WS, 6.6.⁰⁰, Seaf, S-Wells mole coat, Marshall. Lunch Mrs. Gard. More packing. Out c 4 to Achille, + got 3 1/6 Little fracte next door. To Darnley for books, but none. To Agnes. L met L, then Quadrant + met K for tea. Still more packing on return. Tel. twice, L going on well. Dinner in, to Yeo men, very good. Walked back.
12. Greyish. Up in good time to finish packing, left a lot at hotel. Away 10.30 for Pad, 11.10, except 10 miles. Good trip, papers etc, lunch

on train. P met us at Kingsbridge & we bought all but 2 Rss. delivered by van before eve. Lovely afternoon & we, sun came out, full moon. Found T & François here. Early tea for R & F to wait. Got a few things out, then L, T, J grand time with Traps. Lovely evening. Stars at 10, early & bed.

13. Fine, some clouds. Grand sleep. In garden planting tulips & cyclamen. Unpacked & got papers & letters read. High. Wrote FW. Had a grand sing after lunch with T. L & Fr. to Salcombe, back before end of music. Some correspondence, began Gilbert.

14. Not most of time. Spent most a.m. on letters. Ruth H., van B, H. quiet p.m. Began "Myslef about young," papers. Bridge before dinner.

15. Fine, sunny a.m. L & T to Salcombe

for errands, Fr & I walked postway there & back. Got out J. and looked over some esp. Mrs S's part. Really more Myslef when young. Much bridge late p.m.

16. Fine, best day so far. E & R out by 11:30, taking lunch with them. F, L, J left before 2 & went to gardens to see start & part of race. Then to antique shop & got red glass bowl for T's birth day, saw Harry in P.C. about Fr's passport. To Jersey for Ilton Castle & saw E & R being tested as A1 had knocked off Bonapart. Tea on board, van & chair, jeans, pajamas etc - T, L, F, I walked home. Mary. Fryer tested R. by about 8 or so. Meanwhile we had had some bridge. To creek Tel. people, more M.W.Y.

17. Fine. Late start. Wrote E&E, Patrick, FW Stewart. Finished M.W.Y. in a.m. Read Oh - Grand go at Traps. pm - actually got it. Also with L got Tel. Did stat. in Stony cr. Papers, bridge before & after tea. Archduke

17. Fr. - R got mushrooms. Finished most of Gilbert etc.
18. Greyish, misty. Went Trace, mending etc. Wrote part H, B. Gave up idea of golf - had some bridge, papers, packing etc.
19. Greyish, cleared fine & sunny before lunch. Much amusement over old family album T. H for crowds, R walk to me for 11.35. Easy journey, K gave us lunch to take. Papers & part H to be taken. Kings. S - tea, dashed off to see Ruth H at Sesame Hill. F. Dug out a few things. Dinner Quad & to New to Snow White. Card to ATM on return, no tea.
20. Greyish, fine & warm later. Went with L to Aquas, Am Ex, Dr F for cardigan T, Times BC, H Ranger & Harry Comp, E&M. Van Bo to lunch. Later to G&M who was very tired. Had to change to dinner clo' ^{New Cinema}. Tea Mrs Garden. Bus to Putney, back in

- 5 Bush. Later dinner Off Co. In about 10- L came later, did not go Vic. as no wine.
21. Fine. Out to ONTR, Belf. bowls, Books, Wooln, back to Kings - got his bag. Taxi L1 exp. St, met L & C 11.10 train, quick. Four hours fine. Robertsons also to lunch. Garden after. Then to 3 lots sheets, much talk. For tea Durbarin, Fisher (to go 1038+) took radiot. who came with us on 5.20. Brief rest, out before 8. Ready for dinner, then Tatler. Back by 10.30. Ready fashion in threads, finished not to be taken last night.
22. Fine, sun in & out. L packing vigorously till time for hair. Did odds & ends, small packing & left w. Vic as far as Seaf. Out to see ATM but did not find her. 74 - to E&M & looked at picture papers till L came, then F, M, C. for lunch - To C tailor, back to Kings. - changed. Tea Van Bo in her club garden. Also Riley, Dr. Inst. Dined E&M, May P came, fast, back fairly early.

L got present, all rest packed. Wrote HW, Eff.
rather sticky.

23. Fine - left at 6^o. Saw L & C & F off at 9:30.

Packed all things to leave & took T's travel bag to carry a lot. To see Gorn before lunch. Back to Nat Hall for a little. Met Pond & son. To Kipp. to collect coat etc.

Big crowd on 3:30 Pad. but "porter" got me a corner only 6 Western. Then filled up. Charge N. Abbott of Brent. Expected to take bus & walk, but he met me. Back for coffee & E's birthday -

24. Fine. Long sleep, all up late. Wrote to G.M.H. Reading Sullivan, Ben Obs. Tong in pm. while others sailing. Got it before tea. Read 5 stories. Mrs & Miss Jeffrey & Mrs Johnson in for call in eve.

25. Unsettled. To F went to Sal. & I wrote L, H, then did some Jane, notes. After lunch Tel, then Ch I LPSmith on Reading Shakespeare to T while R & F out. Rain

brought F in wet from canoe. Bridge before & after dinner, consumed Tel. later.

26. Fine a.m., drizzling. Spent most am Jane, notes - got Tong A (352) once & then sailing - decided many could be done at VC. Making list for Camb. work. Sent off the Tong. Wrote Effie. More J. after lunch. Then read more LPS "Shake" to T - Cut. Home - before & after supper. R. to Com. meeting, all ok with his protest. F & I read some more after F went home.

27. Unsettled. Mostly J. & a few notes. T put the "bib" in my bundle. Read more LPS to her after lunch, also more Jane. Horrid storm came up. More cutroat till tea. Papers etc. cleaned off. Pack.

28. Fine. Finished packing. Left 11, dep F on way to walk back. Plenty of room, good corner. Papers & Red hat. Late lunch. Are k & S to GVR for ticket, HMR for Schub.

29. String II. Then to see Mr G. Bus to Rich.

mood. Wore Th. on return. Wrote B.
 29. Fine. Out early to TBC with To booker
 and her 2 Shaks & Trina. Odds & ends at
 Woolworths. Left things. To BM to renew
 ticket. Met Foundy Lee who asked me to
 lunch Wed. Rest f.a.m. writing L, T,
 Holes, - Jane until nearly 3. Got to Gt.
 Green & St Albans on 84. Big crowd in
 town but not on bus. Tea usual place & to
 ex. as far as gate. Got 6.24 back & to
 EBC for papers, sherry & sandwich -
 Met D. H. M., her mat Fashion in Schools
 30. Fine. Pack to leave here & for Vinifugji.
 Off on 12.15 Kings +. Plenty of room at first,
 mob from Hitchin. Changed Camb. Then
 two alone to A Road where P. met me.
 To Elstree, for errands. Vinifugji for so -
 unpacked before huge tea. Nice quiet time
 - much talk before late supper. Had new
 Schubert quintet.

31. Fine warm & rather sticky. Took it-easy am. -
 in garden, no fruit but lovely flowers. Printed
 about. Read Obs & ST and started on Tagg
 also in pm till tea. Didn't get much. Did
 Lat. one in ST. Pleasant for lunch. Similar today
 both here. Pr. Jont for a lovely deer before 7,
 Elstree, Euston, went a fig. 5. Later supper
 with Sch. II before & after, Sch. II again, part
 Tech with Hubermann.

Aug 1. Fine, lovely day for Bank Holiday. First shore
 lace, read Th. Began L. Decided not to have
 picnic, but took drive after tea. Wrote
 letters before, more Tagg etc. Pr. Jont a
 fine round Elstree, finally Euston, long
 brick houses across water, roundy & loops.
 Eve Brant II, Van Sym, Sch. A min. IV.

2. Still fine, warm in town. E-P drove me to
 Thet. by road I'd not been on. Warm in
 train, otherwise comfortable. L St. 2.14,
 hot - sticky in town. Still in 4, unpack,

tube etc. It is soon after 4, tea, much talk. Finished L - H - sent Mrs S. from Th Supp. dinner Gennaro. Walk down - back. Wrote Effie, turned in early with "skinned".

3. Still fine & warm. Off in good time to Amex, chequed. Then White Star - got ticket, table, deck chair, railway ticket & seat, labels. Back before 11. To B.M. about 11.30, looked for Gov, not there. At 12 to Fosdyke, sends from Gaestang near Mersin. Martin R & P Daniel down too. Few recognizable bits. Notly red & chalk, inc, bunnik, some pth. All for lunch. Back to hotel, Mr Barnes, - to Camp G. for tea with K. Also music now. Short stay because we went to May P via taxi in front for coffee then stayed to dinner & open q. Saw K. or his - M walked back with me.

Notes to 6th m. Oracle, papers - Cellingham. & Fine. Packed for Camb. off for enroute - lunch K. Got here c. 12 for some talk. W Smith came c. 1 & I left after 2, slow getting back. Stopped Supp. for soap. On after 3, got out packed, wrote T, began H. Off for 4.45 - L ST - arr. 6. Found Gov. came by same train. Stubbings here, all hat shiny - tub cakes, nice quiet evening. Began V nosef, 3.30. 2. Fine, sometimes overcast. Finished L. In study writing rev. of Woolly article - Mrs Kerrett came with drawings of living papers, very amusing. Plan - 1 to Art & did rps. Stopped Garden H. on return - saw M Joyce in garden - am. for Mrs. Mrs S & Miss Bacon to lunch. As C.U.P. turned J down we had a council - A will try Mac. Wrote K. Had a nice quiet p.m. partly wondering if E & P would turn up. Read nonsense book, E. Lear,

Chats worth Read, Finished & wolf in bed.
 E-P didn't come to dinner either. ^{Gardner} Hilda's
 6 Grey & misty, cloud warm. Packed. Read
 rev. lit Sup. of Praeyma - one by Gardner, in which
 he got back a lot. For Antig. Her & I walked
 to Ark, Rev till 12. Hilda 1? came in.
 To Gardner N. left note, back by 12.30 for
 cherry - off at 1 in taxi to Gmt. Not a
 charged before lunch. Took it-easy until
 tea at 4.30, in garden, 16 counting family.
 Good luck that Brundie shower did
 not come till we'd had tea, then could
 get clothes & things in dry. Adjourned
 to G's sitting room. Booked up about
 6, had cleared. Then Miss Scrooby, who had
 been headed off by shower. Ere G & I
 went through a lot of material of her
 book. Begun Flowers for Judge, in bed.
 7. Grey. Walks to early church. Up & &
 began T before breakfast. G. I out before

10 for Kingi. Big shower, sheltered in
 many archways. Finally Rev, late. Fine
 service, Gibbons. Taxi back, finished T.
 Out to lunch, Saunders, 37 Millington, nice
 house and street, garden artwork. Miss S
 had been on E Gardner in 1901, also on botany
 trip to Yugoslavia, so much to talk of.
 Later to Newham, M.H.'s summer rooms
 in Peile, a shower. Ready for tea, Mrs R. in
 good form, better than ever eve. a little
 deaf. Ken. has just left. Others Revs: Buck
 (el Oberlin) de Bressen. Back to New. to all
 new hall, right it - mostly hideous. Bus
 later from pool to St Rd. corner. Late supper
 more talk & papers.
 8. Very delicious, some drizzle. Read H.H. in
 bed, did some packing before & after breakf.
 G to hairdresser - I eat & finished
 "Judge", waiting for it to clear. Off c. 12, to
 station with rev. Later to lunch Hilda P.

David & Joan. John away, but he showed me photos & plans over Taiphi, temple, barnacles etc. Children on bikes. Lost 3 buses, got taxi to market. Walk via Trin St., Jhus, Trinity, back to Gordon H. Tea with 2 Joyce, not Burns. Got S. T. to town, hotel 7. Am in 24. It came soon, dinner Cennaro, talk here & there & after. More "Shouds".

9. Unsettled. Finished "Sh." in bed, so not too early break. Letters from L(2), H & B, wrote Gmt, H, began & before going to K's for lunch & stayed on. Hadn't much help packing but packed a lot, fin L & papers. Out to Green, Hamp Jack Straw walk to tea break & eat in grounds. On back to CB - dinner Appenato & off at FIR stat - I came back. Wrote G/HM, Richter, Christ. Washing & work.

10. Cut, showers off & on. Papers, odds &

ends, then BM & met GRATE in Class. Stud. ^{Rubischek}

Did up Hill 1245, Lema came & on back at 4pm, then BM hill nearly S. Back for tea & paper. Wrote B. Quiet change. To Prom. where I met. Bach program Suite 2 Brum, Brand I - II, Concerto 1 - 2 Bartlett Robinson, aria from Cantatas w Parsons, N Eddie, Treats w. terrible rock by ATW. Back before 11, tea & biscuits & Rabbet. Coffee from L. Rambischek

11. Fine for birthday. Letter from T. wrote her off. Went BM from c 11-1. Many clouds so went out & with umbrella on bus to H Court. Walk in gardens, very hot, sun blazing. Early to Nine G and found her in fine form & we had a nice time over tea. Back 5.25-6, very threatening, roundabout taxi. Through change, left c 7 for Herst. Dodged the terrific thunder showers they had in most other parts of London. Family party, Miss Dickerman (NY) Edgar, Jackson. Much

talk, all in study afterwards. Left CII, moon out.

12. Unsettled. Wrote most of letter to L + had one from her on way out to BM where I spent rest of a.m. - paid an visit to GMAR. Back about 2 + soon settled in DR at desk to work on J's notes. Then till 5.6 when K came + we had a large late tea. Later to Bath. Prom, Leon II, Questa Timba, Cuatin (Mafuru) + Cone (Lanner). Saw 2 savars in interval. At 5pm before inst. Then began overture Harbroke might be anything - lancer in Rhaps. by Ireland, several recalls + 2 encores. Handel Water Music. Back before 11 for tea + rice. very sleepy -

13. Unsettled, cooler. Out c 9 to GWR, Ach, Selby, court, Mar, chro. Back before 10.30. To BM where stayed till after 2. Odd jobs in room, blacking on bags etc. Called up Millers. Talk for tea + papers

till after 6. Found IC here on return. She is in 104. Out 7.20 to Gennaro for dinner, then crossroads in DR till very sleepy.

14. Unsettled. K + I breakfast 8.45. Looked at Obs. She went to Comp. to pack, + I did all the luggage, trunk etc, cleaned + put out newspapers etc. Made up diary. Wrote to part-L + Ora. Tea with Millers at Tudor Court, also Dandy + Miss Cone - Much Ach. talk. To see Jollet and ask for GMAR, very miserable with strings. Back c 6.30. Dined in + did crossroads after, sleepy early.

15. Greyish, cleared fine. Breakfast, Rent. off to movers. Finished packing, L. Left after 10, bough Horse Achilles. Early at Pad. Good come, only 3 others. Read Times, Tel, Murders in Praed St. 2 stray girls from N Africa to Brent. Train late. P met me. Unpacked after tea while others went Robyns' boat. Began to Dus Maurier's Rebecca.

18. Unsettled, mostly fine after early. Short am. with Bob. & some bridge for F, played more in p.m. Til - puzzle. 3 claytons here for cherry from 6. Tr & I had begun Tong. & got it in eve.
19. Wet, hard wind. Late start. Wrote GMH, did some T before & after lunch, looking for more to cut. Got two more of II. Read Windsor at intervals to T. Jean B. here p.m. - we had a lot of bridge. Ham B.
20. Breezy, mostly fine. Wrote B, shelled peach, read W. For picnic, early lunch. ERK off by 1.30. Fine rain came in very close second. I spent pm on Jane & field glasses. They were back to tea. F much earlier. All to cherry at Baldwin's, also 2 Turner, staying here. San Jose N. Ham.
21. Fine, cool. Wrote Gov. Began L, then read Windsor to T, as others were out. Had name in for Tong, but not T. We started after lunch, an odd one "help", finally got it - eve. Others to a cherry at Asalto but I wrote H & read ST - Red T. More papers & rest of Tong. eve.
22. Wet. Finished L. Wrote York, Miss Stevens. Read a lot to T, off & on.
23. Unsettled. Did some on cuts for J. Went p.m. to Wrangaton for golf. Charming place on

edge of moon. Misty round, but rain held off.
Never disgraced myself so badly. Good tea.
Back by 7. Chilly papers eve.

24. Still unsettled. Busy at T. R ff to club so
had good read till lunch. Wrote to son.
Cut-throat before tea. Others ff art for Clayton.
More cutting in J till their return. Tel fine -
roque eve.

25. Fine, some clouds. Ordered & Atchley - wrote to
Aunt C, Nina Ar. Read Win. To T east part
a.m. Papers & a little J later but read more
before & after tea. Eve Certain People.

26. Cloudy. Wrote Alice S, Stewart, J.A.T. Cor
has sent NS to Mac. Excited T nearly to S, back
thru field path. More J during till lunch &
some after. Finished Win before supper. Peter
4th. eve & papers.

27. Fine. Very still. Wrote Uncle 13, Effie, began
H.M. Did washing etc. All out for lunch but
me. Easy pm, some J, lots of papers etc. A

walk through farm on new road, & no races. Back to
tea. T & R got a 15th. Also cup for 2nd in our when
T made speech. From = Stat Sym, Elgar Cello
Conc (B Harrison) Vulcan () Bolero.

28 Wet. all late, packed. Began L.H. Papers,
T sq. p.m. & got it fairly soon. Very hard
rain a.m. steady fine rain p.m. 5 Times,
mosaic.

29. Fine, cool & breezy. Got last things ready -
R took me to train. Comfortable & plenty
of room, 15-m. late. T at hotel we had
tea. Unpacked a lot before dinner which
we had in. Did Tel +, then many letters:
T, Son, G.H.M, C.M.H, Taylor Rom Stud.) Glad
to get to bed.

30. Fine, cool. Fairly early start. Am Ex for
money, Libby white shoes like T's, Cor G.
- Lyric for T's tickets. Ex Cor for visa,
didn't see Cor. but got free. Walk \$8.00 - met
15 for lunch. Walk Surf for 2.30 hours

a few chocolates etc. later 74 to Gilm for early tea. Butter, has been out, but still nervous. Back by 5:30 but I had had tea too. Finished L+H. Dinner Gennaro, also Green whale who was to meet K. "Reading Man in Brown Suit" borrowed from Gilm.

31. Fine. Off soon after 8:30 for Euston. 9:15 to B'ham. Papers + more of way. Son met me with both children, grown a lot + full of beans, on the go all the time. Their horses much nicer, K looking well. Nice day with them all till after early tea when son took me to 4:50. Punch + Trivia. Ees. 6.50 + soon to King. Time to change, K + I to Brahms Prom = Acad, Double Concert Brana + Feuermann + Sym. Williams - Tallis, Bach Cello suite No 6, Busoni Comedy Overture. Tea &c. on

return. Read more story.

Sept 1. Fine, off in fairly good time for many errands but little luck, hunting for suede hat + wool frock. To Deb. for cardigan like T's (none) no forks, times BC for Mauri, no luck, recommended Trees + H. in Clifford St, long wait, no luck.

Boots for powder finally back by 11:45 + did some packing. K + I met Alice S. at Esse for lunch + gossip. Terrible lat more packing, wrote H + with map, T wrist tickets + I forgot what else. ^{Rain} To First night C Morgan's "The Flashing Stream" with G Tozer + M Rawlings. Most interesting play + splendid cast.

2. Fine, all the last things to do. Got things all in before bed time. Out a.m. late to Bumpus (none), Self, Liberty (no slippers). K + I lunch Cavendish. Some cross words before + after tea. Also wrote B, + Gov +

various rates. Gennaro for dinner, back soon after 9 & closed bag, did labels, parcels etc.

3. Fine. Up by 7, breakfast 8, off for 9.30 Waterloo, 6 pieces, to saw me off. Hordes of people but seat us quickly to South. m. papers. All very easy embarking & luggage quickly in. Cabin A 17, terribly small but got things settled early p.m. Good table alone, good deck place. Cool on board, fine sail at first while Strater & I. Setting till tea, letters after to T, K, GMH, Jema (card). Ere "tidriffed" in cinema. Lots of good library books. Lorac "Slippery Staircase".

4. Fine. Up late, nice easy time till finished Lorac. Got 1 Bryant & Baldwin & spent most of p.m.

reading it, in front sun deck, very comfortable, no motion. Irish coast till after tea. Wrote up diary, neglected for a week. Ere began Daniel Cawie.

5. Calm. Think it was Epitaph for a Spy. I began & read again a.m. Also little paper in cabin. E Clarke - didn't meet most p.m. talking. Think DA not eve. Also very poor cinema. Women are like that.

6. Lazy again, read DA most of day with occasional walks.

7. Fog horn off & on. Forgot about weather except rain a.m. Bucked up & did Jane Botts in Card Room 10-1.15. Got landing cards, customs papers etc. Clarke again till after tea. Jane 5:30-7:30. Ere Long gallery, began Lameur fra Nantes. Trivia

8. Fine. Triv. & shift's paper. Jane 10.30-1.30. On deck all p.m. till 6.30 talking to neighbors. Tried to make up diary, prob. a

Got wrong. Had a go at stat puzzle with people next me. Wrote T before dinner. Ere long G. with Lament. Fancy dress ball, not too good.

9. Fine, rough. Finished dials in bed & more Trivia. Card room 10.30-1.30 got over all J's notes. PM in Palmcourt reading. Ere Marco Polo.

10. Fine, calm. Spent most of day on deck reading Malpoli's "Cheerful Delareys." Began packing before dinner, awful job, cut concertina did not fit in case.

Reading

11. Misty at first: woke 4, up 6.30. Breakfast soon after 7, fine sail up. Greek passport, etc. Dock c. 9 long time over luggage (but not so long as I thought, for I got 10 o'clock to Pot-Letters for, like, H, Aunt C, Dark).

Great rock Grand Cent, but checked some

for L.P. Lamb, going up river. Read N.Y.T.

4 met me 11.45, taxi to W, soon to Al 4 for large dinner. Unpacked. To & to see museum, a great success - lovely quiet time - good gossip, made supper. Had a fire walk circle etc. on return from Mus.

12. Fine, lonely sunrise. Some clouds. Early breakfast. Off soon after 9 to Main for mail.

Met M.W.Hill, F.R. Saw old friends in P.O. To Library where E.B. took us all over new poster art building, saw new arr. of catalogues, entrance lobby, studios etc. To G.C. Sem. Hill

12, finished T-K, then Jane, refs. in periodicals. To H & Al. House, E.E. & C.M.T. for lunch - later at H's. Back to Libr. 3-5, in G.K. alcoves. Back for a herb & dry gal-back & came on, - she, H, CS, E.B., M.B. - I dined at AH - adjourned later to H's. Began Mrs. Jenson's.

13. Wet, broke at 4, a deluge. Pack etc. before

breakfast. Rain about over by 9:30 when I left for station - & for Mrs. Erie trip, sun came out by time train left at 9:05 - Had to change - wait - hr. at Alb. but had to book Pullman & to Lake P, chair, smoke, & rest. Had good lunch before Utica. Did not get out here. Lovely all the way up, glorious colours on trees. L & C met me to Cl. with new car, much like old - very comfortable. Chauffeur Earle. Collected trunk & res. from L & P station. House before &. Saw new curtains, new little worn upstairs etc. Am in Mrs' room. Erie news bulletin. Began to Christie appr. w. death.